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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest

only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any

part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”] of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”] collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”) to our
shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”), the Group
continues to focus on movie production, licensing and
derivatives, crossover marketing and provision of interactive
contents (“Filmed Entertainment, New Media Exploitations and
Licensing Businesses”) and cinema investment and
management (“Cinema Business”).

In view of the on-going development of the Cinema Business,
this segment has become the prime revenue generator of the
Group in the Year. Approximately revenue of HK$22.39 million
and gross profit of HK$13.5 million were generated during the
Year. The revenue and gross profit for the Year declined, as
compared to revenue of HK$38.0 million and gross profit of
HK$22.4 million generated in last year, principally due to
outbreak of COVID-19 in the very beginning of Year 2020. All
cinemas in Hangzhou and Shanghai could not open since late
January 2020, which covered the traditional peak season —
Chinese New Year. No schedule of re-opening of cinemas is
confirmed as at the date of this report. All cinemas of the
Group are located in Hangzhou and Shanghai.

In the segment of Filmed Entertainment, New Media
Exploitations and Licensing Businesses, the Group continued to
locate suitable business opportunities. However, no appropriate
target was spotted in the Year. Accordingly, no revenue was
generated in this sector during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

In February 2018, Bingo Movie Development Limited (“Bingo
Movie"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
Lechuang Holdings (HK) Limited (“Lechuang”), an independent
third party, entered into an agreement (the “JV Agreement”) in
relation to the formation of the joint venture company (“JV
Company”). The issued share capital of the JV Company will be
owned as to 49% by Bingo Movie and as to 51% by Lechuang.
The JV Company will be principally engaged in investment and
development of VR (Virtual Reality) and MR (Mixed Reality)
projects. Pursuant to the JV Agreement, Bingo Movie will enter
into of a loan agreement with the JV Company, pursuant to
which Bingo Movie will advance the loan of not less than HK$25
million and not more than HK$35 million to the JV Company for
investment and development of relevant VR and MR projects. In
September 2018, the loan agreement has been signed and
RMB29 million (equivalent to HK$33.8 million) was lent to the
JV Company. Another loan of RMB16 million (equivalent to
HK$17.5 million) with a term of three years was granted to the
JV Company on 30 September 2019. The difference between
the new loan and old loan of RMB13 million with the accrued
interest has been repaid to the Bingo Movie during the Year.
No appropriate VR or MR projects were located as at the date
of this report. For further details, please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 30 September 2019 and 7 November
2019.

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2013/20, the Company
has noted that Mr. Yin Gang ("Mr. Yin"), a director of certain
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group, would have
misappropriated funds of approximately RMB13 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$14.5 million) from two non-
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company established in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for his personal uses. The
Company is in the course of seeking legal advices and will take
appropriate actions against Mr. Yin. Please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 5 February 2020 for further
details.

In view of uncertainty on the re-opening schedule of cinemas of
the Group, the Group has made impairment losses on its
cinema fixtures and equipment, and lease assets of
approximately HK$3.8 million and HK$7.8 million respectively
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately HK$22.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 39.8% as compared with HK$38.0 million for
last year. The HK$22.9 million turnover for the Year (2019:
HK$38.0 million) mainly consisted of the gross revenue of the
Cinema Business of HK$22.9 million (2019: HK$38.0 million).

Save as the loss resulted from the misappropriation of funds by
Mr. Yin of approximately RMB13 million (equivalent to HK$14.5
million) and the impairment losses on the Group's fixed assets
and lease assets totalling HK$11.6 million, which are one-off in
nature, there was overall decrease in the Group’s expenses for
the Year as compared to those for fiscal year 2018/19, which
was resulted from implementation of various cost control
measures.

The significant increase in net loss of the Group from
approximately HK$26.5 million in last year to approximately
HK$54.8 million for the Year is principally due to the decrease
in revenue of cinema business, the loss from misappropriation
of funds by Mr. Yin and impairment on the Group’s fixed assets
and lease assets.

LIQUIDITY, DEBT RATIO, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$82.3 million (2019: HK$115.3 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$38.1
million (2019: HK$60.3 million). There was no pledged bank
deposit as at 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil). As at 31 March
2020, the debt ratio (defined as total liabilities/total assets)
was approximately 0.62 (2019: 0.32).
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

Although the Group’s total assets decreased while total
liabilities increased over the Year, the Group continued to hold
strong cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2020, and
the Board believes that the Group has sufficient resources to
satisfy its working capital requirements. During the Year, the
Group financed its operations principally with its own working
capital. As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any
bank overdraft (2019: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 78 (2019: 115) staff in
the PRC and Hong Kong. Total staff costs including directors’
remuneration were approximately HK$14.9 million during the
Year (2019: HK$17.0 million).

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will
be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees. During the
Year, the Company granted awarded shares to its directors and
employees under its share award scheme, as follows:
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14 October 2019 Employees (In aggregate] 12,780,000
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Save as the grant of awarded shares mentioned above, neither
awarded shares nor share options was granted to the Group’s
directors or employees during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's exposures to foreign currencies mainly arises from
receivables from PRC customers and its investment in foreign
subsidiaries which are financed internally in RMB, and payables
to PRC suppliers. In order to mitigate the potential impact of
currency fluctuations, the Group closely monitors its foreign
currency exposures and will use suitable hedging instruments
against significant foreign currency exposures, where
necessary. No foreign currency hedge contract was entered
into by the Group during the Year. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group had no outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts
(2018: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2019: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no material capital
commitments (2019: Nil).

OUTLOOK

As of the date of this report, the coronavirus outbreak has
killed nearly half million people and infected more than 9 million
people globally. Although the situation in China is better than
many countries in the West, the economy in China is still
shocked to a certain extent. The cinemas have been ordered to
be closed since early Year 2020, and no re-opening date is
confirmed.

In spite of the wide-spreading of coronavirus mentioned above,
the Group may continue to grasp other business opportunities
in investments in cinemas in the PRC and attractive movies,
when appropriate. While the Group continued its existing
businesses, the Group will put more focus onto locating other
business opportunities with enormous potentials, including
provision of consultancy services, online games developing and
operating businesses, and investments in China cultural
industry.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

The VR (Virtual Reality) and MR (Mixed Reality) industry is
undergoing rapid development and the Company considers that
there will be growth potential in investment of VR and MR
projects. In February 2018, the Group entered into an
agreement with Lechuang Holdings (HK) Limited (“Lechuang”) in
relation to the formation of the joint venture company (“‘JV
Company”’). The formation of the JV Company will allow the
Group to utilise its experience in provision of interactive
contents with the expertise of Lechuang in developing VR and
MR projects. The Company is optimistic as to the prospect of
the JV Company, and has granted a loan to the JV Company of
RMB16.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$17.5 million)
in September 20189.

The Board believes that the Group’s existing businesses can
create a synergistic effect with the above-mentioned new
businesses and will benefit the Group in the future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, investors
and business partners for their continued support and
confidence in the Group. | would also like to thank my fellow
Directors and senior management team who have offered
invaluable advice and leadership during such a challenging year
and the management team and all staff for their dedication,
loyalty and valued services.

For and on behalf of the Board

Lau Man Kit
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBEFREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiau Sing Chi — Mr. Chiau has over 30 years of
performance and management experience in the movie
industry. Mr. Chiau has been a leading icon of the movie and
entertainment industry in the Greater China Region for over 30
years, and had received numerous awards in the industry,
including best supporting actor, best actor and best director
awards presented by leading film academies. Mr. Chiau joined
the Group in June 2010. He is currently a director of a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chiau is a brother of Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly — Ms. Chow was appointed as an
executive Director in January 2014. Ms. Chow has over 20
years’ ample experience in movie production and distribution as
well as licensing businesses. She is currently directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Chow is a sister of Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company. In
addition to the Company, Ms. Chow is working with Mr. Yip Yiu
Bong, a non-executive Director, in The Star Overseas Limited.
Mr. Yip is currently the Head of Legal and Compliance of The
Star Overseas Limited, the controlling shareholder of which is
Ms. Chow.

Mr. Lau Man Kit — Mr. Lau joined the Group in January 2014.
Mr. Lau has over 40 years of extensive sales and marketing
experience in various industries, including property
management, computer technology systems and automobiles,
and has a wide business network in China. Mr. Lau is currently
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2019/20

PITES

BEBLLE — FEEETY ARG N0FE
R RER A EE BN EY RIS
FHRE BEASEHE BA0F & REE
BRBEARREZRELERBNZEREA
RESIAMKESERRE -AEER T —F
FAAMAKEE - ERBARTRT — KB
ARZEE-

BEERARARTEETRIERREAEL
TZHB-

AXELt — AT -_F—NFE—-AEZT
RATEF ARINEFZRFE BITRRER
BHEABROFEEL R KRR/ ARABETH
THEBRARZES-

BARERARAFNTESTRIERRALZMNE
EZHE -FRARRSN AR LLBEEGING
RABBFATEETERARESIE-BERERR
ERBINERRRMERRARAEAN ZAH
MR BR R AL -

BEE — BEAR T -OF—AMAR
SE-ZEENYEER BEMRREAKRTE
FNXERRBAIOFLEHERLHER TN
TEEEREZEBKAE - BIEERBARFET
ETHBARZES-



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBEFREERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mprs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, Roberta — Mrs. Chin has co-
produced various films with the Golden Harvest Group in the
past. Mrs. Chin holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in English
Literature from Dominican University of California, USA and a
Master’s Degree in Communication — Documentary film from
Stanford University, USA. Mrs. Chin has more than 30 years’
experience in the film production and distribution industry,
including as an interim CEO in the JC Group. Mrs. Chin joined
the Group in May 2010. Mrs. Chin is currently directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yip Yiu Bong — Mr. Yip, holds Master’s degree of Laws in
Chinese and Comparative Laws, City University of Hong Kong,
Master’'s degree in Professional Accounting, Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Bachelor’'s degree of Business
Administration (Hons), Hong Kong Baptist University. He is
currently the Head of Legal and Compliance of The Star
Overseas Limited, the controlling shareholder of which is Ms.
Chow Man Ki Kelly and she is an executive director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yip has over 14
years of experience in legal and compliance departments of
various companies and legal firms. He has joined the Group in
June 2020.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBEFREERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Choi Mei Ping — Ms. Choi has approximately 20 years’
ample marketing experience in the airline industry. She is
currently working in an international airline company. She has
joined the Group in November 2014.

Mr. Ong King Keung — Mr. Ong holds a bachelor degree in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
master degree in corporate finance from the City University of
Hong Kong. He is a member of both the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He is currently a director of a
professional audit firm in Hong Kong, and has over 20 years of
experience in auditing and accounting industry. He has joined
the Group in December 2016.

Mr. Ong is currently an independent non-executive director of
each of My Heart Bodibra Group Limited (stock code: 8297)
and Risecomm Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1679). Mr.
Ong has resigned as independent non-executive director of each
of China Candy Holdings Limited (“China Candy”, stock code:
8182) with effect from 14 September 2017, KOALA Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 8226) with effect from 15
September 2017, Tech Pro Technology Limited (“Tech Pro”,
stock code: 3823) with effect from 18 February 2019 and
China Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855) with
effect from 22 November 2019, and a non-executive director
of Deson Construction International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8268) with effect from 29 July 20189. Except for China
Candy and Tech Pro which were delisted on 31 December
20189 and 2 March 2020, respectively, the shares of all
remaining five companies are either listed on the main board or
GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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OVERVIEW

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report for the year ended 31 March
2020 (the “Year”). The Company is concerned to have high
standards of corporate governance. It is important because the
Board believes that good quality corporate governance would
assist the management to monitor the Company’'s business
activities effectively and thus interests of the shareholders of
the Company will be well protected.

The Company has applied the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions,
save for the deviations discussed in the sections of “CHAIRMAN
AND CHIEF OFFICER” and “APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION
OF THE DIRECTORS” below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year. The
Company has also made specific enquiry to all Directors and,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard of dealing and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’'s business and affairs. The ultimate
responsibility for the day to day management, administration
and operation of the Company is delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in
all major matters of the Company. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the Group and the Board has the full support of them to
discharge its responsibilities.
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out on pages 12 to 14 of this annual report.
Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is
appropriately structured to provide sufficient checks and
balances to protect the interests of the Group and the
shareholders. The Board will review its composition regularly to
ensure that it has the appropriate balance of expertise, skills
and experience to continue to effectively oversee the business
of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee with the reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company’'s performance
and current market situation. Details of emoluments of the
Directors for the Year are disclosed in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
Directors, including three executive Directors, namely Mr. Chiau
Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly and Mr. Lau Man Kit; two non-
executive Directors, namely Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang
Roberta and Mr. Yip Yiu Bong; and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Choi Mei Ping and Mr. Ong
King Keung. Mr. Chiau Sing Chi and Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly are
siblings. Mr. Yip Yiu Bong is currently the Head of Legal and
Compliance of The Star Overseas Limited, the controlling
shareholder of which is Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly and she is an
executive director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Save as disclosed, the Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) with each other.

Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing
their independence from the Company in accordance with the
guidelines on director independence of the GEM Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the
same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant topics which may
count towards Continuous Professional Development training.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the Year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by
attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Year
under review is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets

REBTAGXEABSK EFRLSEFEIX
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indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which s = ) EARNETET Y S 2 &3 0o
the individual was a Board Member or Committee Member (as
the case may be).
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EEps EZgeR ENZESSE VHEEESE REZEEER BRRAE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi B2 5 E 5/(15) N/A T N/A T~ER N/A ~ER 0/(1)
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly [ED ¢ R 13/(15) N/A T iE A 3/(3) 1/(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Lau Man Kit B EE 15/(19) N/A TiEH N/A TiER N/A TiER 1/(1)
Non-executive Director kHTES
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang, Roberta REEH &+ 15/(15) N/A TiE N/A i A N/A M 1/01)
Independent non-executive Directors B FHTES
Ms. Choi Mei Ping BEXTLt 15/(19) 4/(4) 3/(3) 1/(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk BEHmEE 13/(19) 2/(4) 2/(3) 0/(1) o/
Mr. Ong King Keung IHREE 15/(15) 4/(4) 3/(3) 1/01) o/

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

R



XX

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREIRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer during the year ended 31 March 2020.
The Board is in the process of locating appropriate persons to
fill the vacancies of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Even so, the Board considers that the existing Board members
are able to share the power and responsibilities of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer among themselves, as detailed
below.

Based on Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. The Board’s current significant decisions are made in
Board meetings. Every Board member has the rights and
responsibility to propose Board meetings to discuss significant
issues he/she concerns, and has the power to make the
decisions among other Board members.

With reference to Code A.2.2,
director who proposes that meeting (the “Convenor”) would

in each Board meeting, the

generally be appointed as the chairman of the meeting in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
and he/she has to ensure all directors briefed on issues arising
at board meeting.

With reference to Code A.2.3, the Convenor has to provide the
meeting agenda and materials (the “Board Papers”) to the
company secretary, and the company secretary will then pass
the Board Papers to other Board members for their review.
it is the Board's
practice that the Board Papers have to be given to the Board

Unless urgent matters to be discussed,

at least 3 days in advance of the Board meetings. Other Board
members should have enough time to read the Board Papers
and raise questions and/or request more information before
holding the Board meetings. For the urgent Board meetings,
the Convenor and/or company secretary have to contact
individual Director about the details of the agenda meeting and
the reasons of urgency. Every Board member has the right to
reqguest additional time to understand the agenda details and
delay the Board meeting.
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With reference to Code A.2.4, the executive Directors jointly
provide leadership of the Board, and ensure the Board works
effectively and perform its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. As
mentioned above, all Directors have the rights to propose
Board meetings. The company secretary has to summarise all
agenda items and circulate the agenda to all Board members.

With reference to Code A.2.5, the Board members share the
responsibility to ensure good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established. It is the practice of the Board
to discuss corporate governance issues in the meetings to
approve the interim and annual results.

With reference to Code A.2.6, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of encouraging all directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to
ensure that it acts in the best interest of the Company. The
Convenor has the responsibility to encourage other Directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time
for discussion of issues and ensure the Board decisions fairly
reflected Board consensus.

With reference to Code A.2.7, the independent non-executive
Directors hold at least a meeting among themselves annually,
to consider and discuss any significant issues of the Company
and the Board, without influence from the executive Directors.

With reference to Code A.2.8, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of ensuring that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole. It is a
general practice that the executive Directors will discuss the
shareholder’s viewpoints with non-executive Directors in the
Board meeting following a shareholders’ meeting.
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With reference to Code A.2.9, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of promoting a culture of openness and
debate by facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive Directors. As mentioned
above, all directors, including non-executive Directors, have the
right to propose a board meeting to discuss the issues they
consider important, and enough time is reserved for all
Directors to read the Board Papers and raise questions. It is
the Board's practice to encourage the non-executive Directors
to raise their viewpoints in Board meetings.

Code A.5.1 states that an issuer should establish a nomination
committee which is chaired by the chairman of the board or an
independent non-executive director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive directors. It is the Board's practice
to appoint an executive Director as the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board, as the Board considers
that executive Directors have to lead the business development
of the Company and need to have appropriate Board members
In addition, the
nomination committee of the Board consists of majority of

and senior management to assist them.

independent non- executive Directors, who have the veto power
jointly if they consider the nomination is inappropriate.

With reference to Code B.1.1, the remuneration committee of
the Board would consult Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and the major shareholder of the Company about their
remuneration proposals for other executive Directors.

With reference to Code E.1.2, the Board appoints as least one
executive Director to attend the annual general meeting, due to
the chairmanship vacancy. The executive Directors have to
invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees of the Board to attend the annual general meeting.

With reference to Code F.1.3, it is the Company’s practice that
the company secretary report to the executive Directors.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but they are
subject to re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Articles of the Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board, which include (a) to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group
and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’'s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.
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The Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of its corporate governance policy.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’'s report
attached to the Group’'s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020 set out in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ka Yin, who is a director of an external service
provider, was appointed as the company secretary in November
2013. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He reports to the executive Directors of
the Company and assists the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently. During the Year, Mr. Chan undertook over 15
hours of professional training to update his skill and knowledge.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee
comprises all independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Choi Mei Ping (Chairman), Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk, Mr. Ong King
Keung and one executive Director, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include (a)
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b)
to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
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proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives; and (c) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of executive Directors, non-executive
Directors, and senior management, and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate.

The primary goal of the remuneration on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Group to motivate
executive Directors and senior management by linking their
remuneration with reference to the Group’s operation results,
which reference to individual performances and comparable
market statistics.

The principal elements of the Group’s executive remuneration
package include basic salary, discretionary bonus, and share
options.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises Ms.
Chow Man Ki Kelly (Chairman) an executive Director, and all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Choi Mei
Ping, Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk and Mr. Ong King Keung.

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and determining the policy for nomination of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written
terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those stipulated in Code provisions.
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Procedure and Process for Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for

the appointment of Director(s) including independent non-

executive Director(s) in accordance with the following

procedures and process:

The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration
to the current composition and size of the Board, develop
a list of desirable skills, perspectives and experience at
the outset to focus the search effort;

The Nomination Committee may consult any source it
considers appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from a third party agency
firm and proposals from the Shareholders with due
consideration given to the criteria which include but are
not limited to:

(a) Diversity in the aspects, amongst others, of gender,
age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length

of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in
respect of available time and relevant interest;

(c) Qualifications, including accomplishment and

experience in the relevant industries in which the
Group’s business is involved;
(d) Independence;

(e) Reputation for integrity;

(f)  Potential contributions that the individual can bring to
the Board; and

(g) Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the
Board.
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Vi

Vii.

Vii.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it
considers appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the
candidates, such as interviews, background checks,
presentations and third party reference checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of
candidates who are in and outside of the Board's circle of
contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant
information of the selected candidate to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration of the remuneration package
of such selected candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and the Remuneration Committee will make
the recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not
members of the Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director
to acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as
the case may be) to be filed with the relevant regulatory
authorities, if required.
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Vii.

viii.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors and
measureable objectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural background, educational background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience. All Board appointments
will be based on merit, and candidates will be measured against
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The Nomination Committee has the delegated
responsibilities to monitor the implementation and review the
board diversity policy and report to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual report and accounts, interim report and quarterly
reports and to provide advices and comments thereon to the
Board. The Audit Committee will also be responsible for
reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting,
risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Audit Commmittee comprises all independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ong King Keung
(Chairman), Ms. Choi Mei Ping and Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk. In the
meetings held during the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual, interim and quarterly results of the Company and
made recommendations to the Board and the management in
respect of the Company’s financial reporting, risk management
and internal control system.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 March 2020, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the consoclidated financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis.
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The responsibilities of the external auditor on financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to the
Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020.

The Board has regularly reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems with
an aim to safeguard the shareholders’ interests and the
Company's assets. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements,
errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in achieving the Company's business objectives.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2020, fees for the Company’s
external auditor for audit services and non-audit services were
HK$800,000 and HK$90,000 respectively.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 47 to 53.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective risk management functions are maintained, while
management is required to provide responsive actions to
manage risk. A sound and effective risk management is
designed to identify and manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

Risk Management Framework

We adopt an integrated bottom-up and top-down risk review
process to enable comprehensive identification and prioritization
of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation of material
risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue among
the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation
efforts.
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Internal Controls Model and Continuous Improvement

Our internal controls model is based on that set down by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the U.S. Treadway
Commission (“COS0”) for internal controls and has five
components, namely Control Environment; Risk Assessment;
Control Activities; Information and Communication; and
Monitoring. In developing our internal controls model based on
the COSO principles, we have taken into consideration our
organizational structure and the nature of our business
activities.

We have put in place a phased improvement plan and
progressed to future enhance our internal controls and risk
management system. The initial phase of the plan focused on
adopting a more risk-based (instead of process-based) approach
to risk identification and assessment. This approach enriches
our ability to analyze risks and respond to opportunities as we
pursue our strategic objectives. Management reporting to the
Audit Committee has also been enhanced, including the
presentation of special reports on selected risk topics.

In the current place, we aim to further integrate internal
controls and risk management into our business processes,
including in annual budgeting and planning. Instead of treating
the COSO framework as a framework-update exercise, a holistic
approach has been adopted by us, taking into consideration the
Company’'s circumstances, including its ongoing internal
controls and risk management improvement plan as well as
other strategic initiatives (e.g. corporate social responsibility
strategy and reporting). All of these enhance our ultimate
objective to make our risk management system a “live” one that
is practiced on a day-to-day basis by operating units.
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The Board £E£&
Has overall respansibility for the Group’s risk management system and internal controls systems;
BREARASEZEBRERGERAMERGE:
Sets strategic objectives;
HIE R E R
Review the effectiveness of our risk management systems and internal control systems;
T aT B B IR 6 e R BR BE AR 2 PR
Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure for our major risks; and
ERIZRBIMERMARERIEE: R
Provides direction on the importance of risk management culture.
gERER Lz ERHRB T

assessment and

mitigation of risk

at corporate level
[BEmT]
REEEE

“‘Bottom-up”

“Top-down” Identification,
Overseeing, = ment and
identification, Management %32 mitigation of risk

Design, implements, and monitors risk management and internal controls systems; and
Fit BRMEERBRERRABEZHE: &
Assesses our risk and mitigating measures Company-wide.

FHEARR ST EZBR RENEE-

Audit Committee EREE®
Supports the Board in monitoring risk exposure, design and operating
effectiveness of the underlying risk management and internal controls systems
XEERGEERARAIERARBBEREE LA EZEHE 2 Rt REERR

Operational Level & & & &
Risk identification, assessment and mitigation performed across the business; and
FEBER  FELRERR K
Risk management process and internal controls practiced across business
operations and functional areas
HEBEERBAEBEEAREERF RADEE

at business unit
level and across
functional areas
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Review of Risk Management & Internal Controls
Effectiveness

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
has engaged independent professional advisors (the “Advisors”)
to carry out the internal audit functions by performing
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
Advisors have conducted an annual review (the “Annual Review”)
of and made recommendations to improve the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
Based on the Annual Review the Board considered the risk
management and internal controls system effective and
adequate. No significant areas of concern that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk
management functions of the Group has been identified. During
the review, the Board also considered the resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions, and their training and budget

were adequate.
HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has put in place a policy on handling and
dissemination of inside information which sets out the
procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner in such a way to avoid
placing any person in a privileged dealing position. The inside
information policy also provides guidelines to employees of the
Group to ensure proper safeguards exists to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory and listing rule
disclosure requirements. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential
inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant
information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposal at general
meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the articles of association of the
Company, no person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a written notice (unless otherwise specifically
stated and as further defined in the articles of association of
the Company)  (the “Notice”) signed by a shareholder of the
Company (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a
Notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the
Company or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such Naotice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
(7) days and that (if the Notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

R SRAEF

BRREMBRRIFIAERRBRRAG LRER
BRZERF

RERARNAR ZEABEZMAESBK EFSA
RERREE ZERRRERBRRFRAE - (E
—RI U EREZERABRBEE RN
RARBBRRAGRREZ ARAZREA+
DZ—ZARBBR BREEREBAESTEN
ARBZARMEBHRLHEREZ R BXEFET
FRRERSHIAE  ARIBEMERPIEAZEM
FE BABREARNEZZEREM(2)EA
NBT-HWEER-T—RNERN - EFEXHA
BRABARE AEZERA LA BITUEES
ABRARE MEEBRALTEREEEREAH
REMEEZMEAERXARARRARMES
ERALIFHMHE-

REARARZEBERMRFESSK KRIFRE
EHES2E DAKE LREESRN BEER
ATEERREMBRAE L2REE KRIEH
ERGEREERGERG EREZZARARQAR
REFZ2ZALHRINBRZBEREN(KARFZ
HEERARNSITREERE - FREERIN)
(R EFXRAZEREZALL2EZE
[ - WH EERAALRERTEE 2R B
ERARBEPREREIARBEERMDBFE
AN ARAEEZEBNZZEHREIA
BREZB (BWRFERAEBEEMETET
ZERASRERABM)EXARBBMZY
RERFERTARBRZERAGARAES
PEMAK UM FERZERASETEMATC
(7)B#R-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

3



32

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELWE

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Company, for the attention of the Board of Directors, by
email: info@bingogroup.com.hk, or mail to Unit 202, 2/F,
Chinaweal Centre, 414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including quarterly, interim and annual reports and
public announcements. While the annual general meeting
provides a valuable forum for direct communication between
the Board and its shareholders, the Company also maintains its
website to provide an alternative communication channel for
the public and its shareholders. All corporate communication
and Company's latest updates are available on the Company’s
website for public’s information.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2020 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2020 by operating segment is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 57. The
Directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 180. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Fair review of the Company’s business and likely future
development

Please refer to “Directors’ Business Review” on pages 6 to 11.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Environmental protection

The Group has taken an initiative to promote employees’
awareness of environmental protection and the need to achieve
efficient utilisation of resources through launching paper
recycling in offices.

Compliance with laws and regulations

In order to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Group emphasises the importance of adhering to
anticorruption practices for all employees. The Group regards
honesty, integrity and fair play as its core values that must be
upheld by all employees of the Group at all times. As such, the
Board has instructed the Group’s employees are not allowed to
solicit or accept any advantage for themselves or others, from
any person, company or organisations having business dealings
with the Group.

Company’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities to
advance their career. The Group’s policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations, seminars
and training courses related to their roles and duties through
leave grants. Competitive remuneration is also offered to
employees and their performance is reviewed on an annual
basis reflecting each employee’s contributions to the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Company's operations. Details
of the share option scheme arrangement can be referred to
the “Share Option Scheme” section in this Directors’ report and
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2019/20

TERBEFEERE

F2 MR A M HKRMES -

AEBCRIER BAERRAEORERES
BEZRREBANEHAERMNAERZFE -

BFEERBRR

REST (G EEREDD)  AREREERER
BEETRESEMR - AKERRE TERA
FREREZLEER AEEMEBERENE—H
mE-Fi BERFLERN ARXBERETF
RECHBMAFMBERNEEEEHREZAL
NAERBEBEERIBEIEMEA 2 M-

RAREREZETERBHE

AEBERREEBRHEBERRKE AKEZHEK
REBRBPEN BEESEBEBG NBE
HENEXEA BENIIRRE - AEETT4
TEEABFINFHH T HFRERS @HL
AEEW AR ERR -

Bz 2

ARAIRAE—ABEREE S ERBRE®RS
BR2HBEHARRRERINIELZ AR - B
BT A BRI 2HAES WS [BRES)
— 8 RER A WIS IRARMIFES -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board established a dividend policy (the “Dividend Poalicy”) in
January 2019. The Company endeavours to maintain adequate
working capital to develop and operate the business of the
Group and to provide stable and sustainable return to the
shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take
into account, among other things, the actual and expected
financial performance of the Group, the capital and debt level of
the Group, the general market conditions, any working capital
requirements, capital expenditure requirements and future
development plans of the Group, the liquidity position of the
Group, contractual restrictions on payment of dividends, the
statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject
to from time to time and any other relevant factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company's dividend distribution record in
the past does not necessarily imply that the similar level of
dividends may be declared or paid by the Company in the
future.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands and the Company's articles of association and
any other applicable laws and regulations. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or
cancel the Dividend Paolicy at any time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in either the Company’s convertible
bonds, share capital and share options during the Year are set
out in notes 28, 29 and 31 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During in the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 1.99% of the total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to 1.31%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted to
92.86% of the total cost of sales for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
82.52%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi

Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly
Mr. Lau Man Kit

Non-executive Director:
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta
Mr. Yip Yiu Bong (appointed on 1 June 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Ms. Choi Mei Ping

Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk (resigned on 6 May 2020)
Mr. Ong King Keung

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Chiau Sing Chi
and Ms. Choi Mei Ping shall retire by rotation in accordance
with Article 84(1), and Mr. Yip Yiu Bong shall retire in
accordance with Article 83(3). All of them being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2020 and it still considered them to be independent as
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the Year, none of the Directors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of the subsidiaries or its holding company was a
party and in which any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at the time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance
Policy for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such
palicy are reviewed annually by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the following Directors of the Company
had or were deemed to have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2019/20

EERXS - RERSHhzHG

FReRE M IS MR M ESBMBBEEIN EF L E
FEHARRE - ERME AR SE R AR R 7 A
AEEXBEAEAMERARAFREIAFENRN
MABRZEMEAR S THAAKNTEERX
EEABEAER

RAFEERET LN FETMNERNRBRHE
BHREMEARDOZEERTRABZALN -

EFEREA

ARREREEFENBEREEEEETRR MU
REEECETRMSIEZEREE ARFY
RZERBNRBNMREBEETFRE R -

EFERER/ITHARRRGRHERK
izl RKkE

RZE-EF=ZA=+—H ' THARIEER
AR REBEEE (EHEREBEFES71E
BENLEERG ([EHELBEEN])EXVE)



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws 2 %5 - BEAR D SE ST A AR EHA (1)
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) (i) which were required to be notified 1RIEFEHF M EEHIEXVEE7R8H HAME
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions AR R MBS 2 EHSAR (BIEFSEEE
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short % & Hi & 1555 B (5 U E 1E SR 1EH B 2 1
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such  zZE AR ) © 8k (i) RIEE A L S (5] £3521%
provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to 78 &0 ARZ K FT il & 52t 2 #E 25 50K 2 0 3k (iii) 1R
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred & GEM R BI5£5.46E5.67K 6B E it
to herein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of TEAERX SR TBME RN R KRBT 2 i
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the =3 A &

Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange:

(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company (a) RAEQARBZHE
Approximate

percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of
Name of Directors Nature of interest Shares held the Company
EARRDF
EBRITRA
EEnS EaEftE RO EE BMYBE D
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi Beneficial owner 27,573,529 3.22%
JB 2 5t S5 EmEAA
Held by trust (Note 1) 402,121,240 47.01%
BEFERA (A1)
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly Held by trust (Note 1) 402,121,240 47.01%
RIS 2+ mERERA (HaE1)
Notes: Kt :
1. These shares are registered in the name of Beglobal 1. &% )y A Beglobal Investments

Investments Limited and Golden Treasure Global Investment
Limited. Beglobal Investments Limited and Golden Treasure
Global Investment Limited are companies indirectly owned
by a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which
are Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly and their

family.

2. The total number of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2020 was 855,384,669.

Limited % Golden Treasure Global
Investment Limited 2 & & & & e
Beglobal Investments Limited X Golden
Treasure Global Investment Limited ¥
REMEETHRABEME S  AXE
T RERBZBEETHRZEEEZA

7o

2. ARFRZZEZZEE=RA=+-—-HZC
BITIR A 4B 2 5855,384,669% °
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(b) Long positions in the underlying shares of the (b) RAQATHBERGZHR
Company
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 ARAERZZE—_F N \A+HBERMA—
August 2012 which the Board may, at their discretion, TRRERERTE Bl EFGARERDE
offer employees, Directors, or any other persons who HASEELERZER EFHEME
have contributed to the Group to take up share options to A TREEZEL  IRE R E £ 5T 7
subscribe for shares subject to the terms and conditions AR R AR 4N P SREB IR 1 < B AR A o
stipulated in that share option scheme.
Details of the share options granted to the Directors RAFE ZESHEETETESTZ2ER
under the Schemes and movements in such holdings EREEZEFFNOT
during the Year were as follows:
Number of
Number of Number of Number of options Number of
options held options options cancelled/ options held
as at granted exercised lapsed as at
1 April during during during 31 March
Name of Directors Option type 2019 the Year the Year the Year 2020
RZB-N%§ REEE RAEE REEE  R-B-EF
BRE mA-BfiE Ritiz ki ¥4 F8/4%% ZA=t+-A
BEspg Eobil BREHA k&S H BRE®E EREHE FRBREHA
(Note 1) (000) (000) (000) (000) (000)
(1) (F1) (F14) (F1) (F13) (F13)
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi 2014A 750 - - (7580) -
REHLE 2015A 2,000 - - - 2,000
2017A 8,500 - - - 8,500
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly 2014A 750 - - (7580) -
Ehe e, 2015A 750 - - - 7580
2016A 7,500 - - - 7,500
2018A 7,500 - - - 7,500
Mr. Lau Man Kit 2014A 750 - - (750) -
E Gt 2015A 750 - - - 750
2016A 750 - - - 750
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang Roberta ~ 2014A 750 - - (750) -
RIBEH LT 2015A 750 - - - 750
2016A 750 - - - 750
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Number of

Number of Number of Number of options Number of

options held options options cancelled/ options held

as at granted exercised lapsed as at

1 April during during during 31 March

Name of Directors Option type 2019 the Year the Year the Year 2020
RZB-NE REEE REEE REEE R-B-EE

BRE MA-BfE Rtz Tz H#/%¥  ZA=t-8

EBps ] BREHA REHE BREZE BREHE HFEBREXA
[Note 1) (000) (000) (000) (000) (000)

(Hit1) (T13) (T13) (T13) (T1) (F13)

Ms. Chai Mei Ping 2015A 750 - - - 750
EXTat 2016A 750 - - - 750
Mr. Tsai Chiu Yuk 2016A 750 - - - 750

ZHBEE

Total 5t 34,500 - - (3,000) (31,500)

Note 1: Details of specific categories of share options are
disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financia
statements.

In addition to 10,500,000 number of Shares which would
be allotted and issued upon the exercise in full of the
options offered to Mr. Chiau Sing Chi under the share
option scheme of the Company as mentioned above, and
8,550,000 number of Shares granted to him on 16
August 2019 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
55,147,057 number of Shares which would be allotted
and issued upon the exercise in full of the convertible
bonds held by Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, as at 31 March 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFQO), (i) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQJ; or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

a1 ERREENBRE ZHBREAY

B R M B4R EE -

BRIRBEAR D ABRENESRTEEMTE
ZEREEREITERE TRERETZ
10,500,0008% f% {7 & 1R 1% iz 10 22 B &1 2
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8,550,000 MmN MZZE_FTF =4
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2020, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or was deemed to have, interests or short in
the shares or underlying shares (i) which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii)
who is expected, directly and indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group or (i) which were required, pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

ERRREH A LR G 5 HRK
frziEa

REFMA R_ZT_FF=A=+—H' KT
AL (AFFARREZTLRHTHRAR)REN
SEERNDFHERAIERERE(NVREZSF K
HEGOIEXVEFE2R35 B Z &AM AR F
KPR EAaIORR R (i) AR EEX
BEEA TARRBA (| TESEARMNRE
MERTEAREEAKEARZKRRAE L
BR)EE10% KA L 2 et SOR B (i)
RIEE 7 LG G0 £330/ A 50 80 5% IR A
B ERIOKER

RELXTROREBERD TR

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Shareholders Shares held the Company
HARRAB BT

RREHE iR 88 RAEBNBED L
Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited (Note 1) (47:%1) 402,121,240 47.01%
Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited (Note 1) (#1:E1) 402,121,240 47 .01%
Beglobal Investments Limited (Note 2) [ /1:£2) 402,121,240 47.01%
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited (Note 2] [ #1:£2) 72,500,000 8.48%

Notes:

1. Mr. Chiau Sing Chi, Ms. Chow Man Ki, Kelly and their family are
the beneficiaries of a discretionary trust of which Sinostar FE
(PTC) Limited (“Sinostar”) is the trustee. Sinostar as the trustee
of the discretionary trust is the sole shareholder of Treasure
Offshore Holdings Limited, which is the sole shareholder of
Beglobal Investments Limited.

2. Beglobal Investments Limited directly holds 329,621,240 shares
of the Company (representing approximately 38.53% of the
issued share capital of the Company) and indirectly holds
72,500,000 shares of the Company (representing approximately
8.48% of the issued share capital of the Company) through
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited as at 31 March
2020.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors, eligible employees
and participants who have contributed to the Group, and will
expire on 14 August 2022. Under the Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to certain
employees of the Group and any distributor, contractor,
business partner, promoter, service provider, customer,
supplier, consultants, agents and advisers or any person who,
in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group in recognition of their contribution to
the Group.

The number and exercise prices of outstanding share options
as at 31 March 2020 were adjusted due to share consolidation
effective on 2 May 2019. As at the date of this annual report,
the total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the Scheme is 85,538,466 shares, which represents
approximately 10.0% of the number of total issued shares of
the Company, and the Company had 70,750,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 8.3% of the Company's shares in issue as at that
date.

As at 31 March 2020, the remaining life of the Scheme was
approximately 2 years and 5 months.

RSBz HERT &

RER-FT-—"F\ATHBRBBZIRER &
RARBEAAKEELERNES AERE
B2 EERMBRETE([%TE]) ARG
R —T - —F )\ At AER - RIEZE
ARBEFEARANKES TEEARMER[NS
HE AR ERBH BEA REMHER.
EP HER BAA REMERKEFTSS
ROERSERRALERAKEEFLERZ
EAALTREBEE UXBRESAEEEL
B

HRBRNEHR-ZE-NFEAZBAER R
E_EF A=+ BERARTEZBRERE
RITEEBEETHB -RAFHRA Y Al HRE
ZET 81317 2 AR E {7 42 21 /85,538,466
B HERARAR S HITRMARHNI10.0% K
RARBZAERNARATEZERER
70,750,000 - HE R B AR BB HITRHD
#18.3% °

RZFB_TF=ZA=1+—8 ZA8RTFHY
RZFTRMEA-

Number of
Number of Number of options Number of
Number of options options cancelled/ options
options granted exercised lapsed held as at
held as at during during during 31 March
Category Option type 1 April 2019 the Year the Year the Year 2020
R-ZB-NF REFEZH R-B-EF
mA—B REFERHZ REFETEZ KMz =A=+-—AH
Eebl B % 7 8 5 FisERERE BRERE BREHE BREHE FEERERE
('000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(Ft) (F) (T12) (T12) (T)
Directors & % 2014A 3,000 - - (3,000) -
2015A 5,000 - - - 5,000
2016A 10,500 - - - 10,500
2017A 8,500 - - - 8,500
2018A 7,500 - - - 7,500
Employees & & 2018A 15,000 - - - 15,000
Advisors fe £ 2014A 68,450 - - (68,450) -
2015A 1,000 - - - 1,000
20168 1,500 - - - 1,600
2018A 22,500 - - - 22,500
Total 485t 142,850 - - (71,450) 71,5600

Note: Details of specific categories of share options are disclosed in

note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

34T -
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THE SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 14 August 2019 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board adopted
the Share Award Scheme which has taken effect immediately.
The following is a summary of the principal terms and
conditions of the Share Award Scheme:

Purposes and objectives

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to recognise and
reward the contribution of Eligible Persons, which are defined
below, to the growth and development of the Group, to give
incentives to Eligible Persons in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the Group and to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of ten (10) years commencing on the Adoption Date.

Eligible Persons

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme, the
following classes of participants (each an “Eligible Person”) are
eligible for participation in the Share Award Scheme:

(a) any employee (an “Employee”) (whether full time or part
time, including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director) of any member of the Group or any
entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds any
equity interest;

(b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

(c) any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant to or
expert in any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and
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(d) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group,

and, for the purposes of the Share Award Scheme, the
awarded shares may be made to any company wholly owned by
one or more of the above participant(s). The eligibility of any of
the Eligible Persons to an awarded shares shall be determined
by the Board from time to time on the basis of the Board's
opinion as to his contribution and/or future contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

The grant of the awarded shares to the Eligible Person(s) is
through (i) the purchase of awarded shares by the Company’s
administration committee or the trustee of the Share Award
Scheme; and/or [ii) issue of new awarded shares under the
general mandate approved at the Company’s general meetings.

In addition to the awarded shares granted to Directors and
employees of the Group stated on page 9 of this annual report,
17,080,000 awarded shares were granted to advisors of the
Group on 14 October 2019.

For further details of the Share Award Scheme, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 14 August 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES” and “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, none of the Directors or employees of the
Group or their associates were granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries the rights to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any
such rights as at 31 March 2020.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to
ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Details of the Director's emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consoclidated financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 33 to the consoclidated financial
statements, no other connected transactions (including
continuing connected transactions) were entered into by the
Group under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Man Kit
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

@ CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
U A A A
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 54 to 179, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consoclidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. \We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

REEXER

FAREZSFHEERERMANERHE RBYEAN
PR BBRRIBEGRRERZTH ZFE
HeAERMERERGAMBHRRMEARR
RETREEN R SHZFFREHERE

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming R °
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
How the matter was RPN EZ

Key Audit Matter addressed in our audit BREXEHE A EEZEE
Revenue from cinema investment KEZ I REREEER
and management business ZWas
Refer to Notes 5 and 6 to the B2HEeMBERE
consolidated financial statements MizE5 %6
We identified revenue Our procedures inrelationto FHFIBKEFRIEERE BRMAEFREER
recognised from cinema revenue from cinema BESHERAZKZHMES TEEBEENRE
investment and management investment and management R EZEE  HREERZ FEE:
business as a key audit matter business included: WaHneBancARE
as revenue recognised is AREILEE- — THRERKRE
quantitatively significant tothe — O btaining an NEBREBZ
consolidated statement of profit understanding of the EHERFWEEEZEN W @ig
or loss. revenue process of the MR MESKRENEL

cinema investment and HANTER - WARBERN G — THERKB
Revenue from box office takings management business; 2 N iR TR ERE
is recognised when the movie is 2Mm P EE-SHE T BEB R
broadcasted and revenue from Understanding the key ZHF=-HA=+—HIFE" L EEES R
advertising is recognised over controls over the EBE&EEBRRETREE
the contract terms. The recognition of revenue REBEBKOR =N AR — ABLRMEH
accounting policy for revenue from cinema investment 22,888,000/ 7t 2 R 4r XM (BED
recognition is disclosed in Note and management &EmEXNARESVER BBE ZEEW
2(m) to the consolidated business; and M S MBH i FE ARERES
financial statements. The Group A8 EFTRE
recognised revenue of — Performing test of details, MER R
approximately HK$22,888,000 on sample basis, by MEETHIE
from cinema investment and comparing the details and A o

management business for the
year ended 31 March 2020,
which is disclosed in the
consolidated statement of profit
or loss and Notes 5 and 6 to
the consolidated financial
statements.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2019/20

amounts shown on the
underlying documentation,
including the journal
vouchers, box office
takings report and
contracts for advertising.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was
addressed in our audit

HEERER

EMEZ
MREZEIE

Impairment assessment of
gooawill, related property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Refer to Notes 16, 17 and 18
to the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 March 2020, the
carrying amounts of goodwill,
property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets
amounted to HK$3950,000,
HK$5,571,000 (net of
impairment) and
HK$10,829,000 (net of
impairment) respectively are
attributable to the cinema
investment and management
business cash-generating units
which are assessed annually and
whenever there is an indication
that the cash-generating unit
may be impaired, for
impairment.

Impairment tests require the
estimation of recoverable
amounts of the relevant cash-
generating units and group of
cash-generating units. The
recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units and group of
cash-generating units was
determined using value in use
calculations, based on discounted
future cash flows forecast
prepared by the management of
the Group as detailed in Note 18
to the consolidated financial
statements.

We identified the impairment
assessment as a key audit matter
because it involves a significant
degree of judgement made by
management which includes:

— Preparing future cash flow
forecasts for the relevant
cash-generating units and
group of cash generating
units; and

— Selecting and applying
appropriate growth and
discount rates.

Our procedures in relation to
impairment of goodwill and
related property, plant and
equipment included:

Assessing the reliability of
management’s forecasts
by comparing previous
budgets to actual results;

Assessing the
reasonableness of the key
assumptions of the
forecasts based on our
knowledge of the industry
and evidence provided;

Reconciling input data to
supporting evidence
and checking the
mathematical accuracy
of the value in use
calculations; and

Performing sensitivity
analysis on the key inputs
for the management’s
forecast of the
impairment assessment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. \We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal contral.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of e
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of e
the consoclidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. \We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

LHEERABBECE ST ERZREMLE
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We communicate with those charged with governance KREMEEIN RFEEREE BB E 2 EZE
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing AT EAEZERE BEEMES
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any %/ & Bl H A SR Hil 2 (T (0] | AGREA

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a HMTMAEEEBRESEH HERMEFEEH
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical BVt EEEEEEER WEMFEBREA

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate &¢&

BitWRee X ERFIBLIE A RIE

with them all relationships and other matters that may HMEMEIE - LARIEERER T 2 BEHEHE

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shek Chi

Practising Certificate number PO5540

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

TeEREgx

iy = ?Eﬁ

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
" aF FET FET
Revenue g % 56 22,888 38,048
Cost of sales and services HE MRS A (9,395) (15,634)
Gross profit EF 13,493 22,414
Other revenue and other net income H b U 2 K B A F WA 7 3,460 2,087
Other loss H b g5 8 (14,512) -
Selling and marketing expenses HE K& HMAX (4,434) (6,531)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (34,107) (37,5586)
Impairment of property, plant and Mm% BB RRERE
equipment (3,806) -
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE (7,770) -
Share-based payments LARR 1D B ERE 2 5k 31,34 (1,720) (2,181)
Share of result of an associate Db —EEE A RIELE (50) 2)
Finance costs & AR g (5,265) (3,835)
Loss before taxation BRELRIEE 10 (54,711) (25,624)
Taxation 18 13 (131) (918)
Loss for the year ARFEEFEE (54,842) (26,542)
Loss attributable to: EREE:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZZ =N (41,475) (26,410)
Non-controlling interests FEFEIR SR (13,367) (132)
(54,842) (26,542)
HK cents HK cents
B A
Loss per share BREER 15
Basic and diluted HAN#E (4.85) (3.09)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReRMEEka®

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Loss for the year KEEFE (54,842) (26,542)
Other comprehensive loss Hitt 2 EEE
ltem that may be reclassified HEn s HEZBm HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BREBINEBEFCERZHE
foreign operations
— Exchange differences arising during — ANFEEA ZE K Z5
the year (844) (2,532)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, 7N & H b2 HEEE - IR HIE
net of tax (844) (2,532)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEZHEEHAE (55,686) (29,074)
Other comprehensive loss BEEMEEEE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RRABEA A (418) (1,290)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR = (426) (1,242)
(844) (2,532)
Total comprehensive loss
attributable to: Efh 2 EE AR
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ =N (41,893) (27,700)
Non-controlling interests FEVEAR A (13,793) (1,374)
(55,686) (29,074)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKRAER

At 31 March 2020

R-ZF-_FF=A=+—HIFE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —NF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
ik FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz WE MEE 16 5,571 9,752
Right-of-use assets CRREE 17 10,829 -
Goodwill BES 18 950 950
Interests in an associate M — G & R R M 19 169 502
Loan to an associate BT —HBERRNER 19 17,512 -
Deposit for acquisition of non-controlling
interests WHESE IR IER VIR & 22 721 -
Rental deposits Heke 21 657 700
36,409 11,904
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables FEUYE 5 BR K 20 132 969
Loan to an associate BT —HBERRNER 19 - 33,808
Other receivables, deposits and H i EUKRIE ~ 2 & RTENR
prepayments FHIE 21 6,203 2,232
Payments to parties for procurement MBI EB RS M
for investment of cinema business | 22 1,452 5,412
Cash and cash equivalents ReENRBEREFEY 23 38,146 60,926
45,933 103,347
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables & E 5 R 24 347 909
Deposits received, ather payables and PR E - E Ath B A FRIE K2
accruals FEST IR 25 3,342 2,969
Contract liabilities EHaE 26 7,405 7,756
Convertible bonds AR & 25 28 9,747 -
Lease liabilities HEalE 27 3,877 -
Tax payables ANERE] — 1,064
24,718 12,698
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFE 21,215 90,649
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERABAE
LIABILITIES 57,624 102,553
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SaMERARE

At 31 March 2020

R-ZF-_FF=A=+—HIFE
2020 2019
—E-FF —EFNF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
it 5 FTER FAET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 28 11,793 24,618
Lease liabilities HEAR 27 14,237 -
26,030 24,618
NET ASSETS EEFE 31,594 77,935
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R @&
Share capital & 29 8,554 136,861
Reserves 1 26,977 (68,782)
35,531 68,079
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M 2 35 (3,937) 9,856
TOTAL EQUITY B 31,594 77,935
The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 179 TFIH#HRES4BEF17985 2 AT BERERER
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of ZZTZTF XA+ NABESSHMEREE
directors on 26 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: Tz WHTIIEEFREEE:
Chow Man Ki Kelly Lau Man Kit
B X B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF FF

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ﬁ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeERE

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

Equity Share Attributable
component Share award to owners Non-
Share Share  Contributed  of convertible options scheme  Exchange Accumulated of the  controlling
capital premium surplus bonds reserve reserve reserve losses Company interests Total
TRRES BiELRE] AR
Rx  RGEE B4R EEND  BREERR B EXRK ZHER  BEARE  FERER &zt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR AR TEr TEL TR TAL TEL TEL TR TAL TEL
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F
=A=1+-H 136,861 420,810 3,930 76,520 99,685 - 62 (644,270 93,598 11,230 104,828
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - 26,4100  (26,410) (132)  (26,542)
Other comprehensive loss ~— AFEEH2E
for the year BE
— Exchange differences —BEEEZ
anising on translation EXZER - - - - - - (1,290) - (1,290) (1,242) (2,532)
Total comprehensive loss ~ AFE2EFEEE
for the year - - - - - - (1,290) (26,410) (27,700) (1,374) (29,074)
Equity settled share option @& ZRERER 5
arrangement - - - - 2,181 - - - 2,181 - 2,181
Lapse of share options BREAN - - - - (48,844) - - 48,844 - - -
At 31 March 2019 RZF-NF=A
=1+-8 136,861 420,810 3,930 76,520 53,022 - (1,228)  (621,836) 68,079 9,856 77,935
Loss for the year TEEER = - - - - - - (41,475) (41,475) (13,367) (54,842)
Other comprehensive loss A FEH2E
for the year BE
— Exchange differences —HBEEEY
anising on translation EAZE - - - - - - (418) - (418) (426) (844)
Total comprehensive loss ~ AFF2EEELE
for the year - - - - - - (418)  (41,475)  (41,893)  (13,793)  (55,686)
Extinguishment upon EHATARER %
extension of convertible MER
bonds - - - (51,012) - - - 58,597 7,585 - 7,585
Recognition upon extension  EE AR B/
of convertible bonds 7 - - - 40 - - - - 40 - 40
Lapse of share options BREAR - - - - (42,756) - - 42,756 - - -
Equity settled share award ~ SAEGEZE 2R A
arrangement RETH - - - - - 1,720 - - 1,720 = 1,720
Capital reduction BAEAR (128,307) - 128,307 - - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2020 g
=+-A 8,554 420,810 132,237 25,548 10,266 1,720 (1,646)  (561,958) 35,531 (3,937) 31,594
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-EF — &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHELEZHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation A EE (54,711) (25,624)
Adjustments for: I BA T B IE:
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss R R 2 B & BN 5,265 3,835
Interest income B U A (808) (1,008)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1%  B&E MR EITE 2,432 2,440
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé%?ﬁ% 3,831 -
Impairment loss on property, ME BB N B2 A
plant and equipment 3,806 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets CAEEEZRE 7,770 -
Impairment of trade receivables JEWE 5 RS E 325 11
Share of result of an associate pak(a)ii A= /NCIE S 50 2
QOther loss H g8 14,512 -
Property, plant and equipment written off WEE YR R KRR 7 25
Share-based payments VARR A7 A B 2 1P 3K 1,720 2,181
Rent concession HeBER (460) -
Operating cash flows before working capital EEESEHAZ
changes KEEPRE (16,261) (18,108)
Decrease in trade receivables FEWE 5 BR ROR 2> 465 213
(Increase)/Decrease in other receivables, EmmElaIE - -mZek
deposits and prepayments EAHRECEm) R (19,038) 2,308
Decrease in trade payables & E SRR (520) (494)
Decrease in depasits received, IR ® ~ E qth FE A 5RIE K
other payables and accruals JE ST FIE R (1,094) (5,851)
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities SHaEEmMm ORd) 126 (205)
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS EEMARS (36,322) (22,137)
Interest received 2B 304 -
Tax paid B FIE (374) (1,1586)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EEfACEESEEHE (36,392) (23,293)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ReleRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2020 2019
e —E-hEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
it FER FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHZ2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Net cash repayment from parties for BEHERRZREFHE
procurement 2,920 -
Refunds of deposit paid for investing KEBFENEMIESER
projects - 24,604
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE WENERE
equipment (2,098) (1,139)
Loan to an associate M — B R RIREHER - (33,357)
Repayment received for loan to B U B A B IR B TR EY
an associate B 16,287 -
Interests received EHHE 773 516
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED &2&EEFE  (FiA) 2z
IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES ReFE 17,882 (9,372)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHz2HERE
ACTIVITY
Repayment of lease liabilities BREHEEAE (2,908) -
Interest paid EARHLE (718) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING REEBHMAZRETE
ACTIVITY (3,626) -
DECREASE IN CASH HeRBEEEWRED
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (22,136) (32,665)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUzEERESEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 60,926 95,995
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 5|\ [& &K & &) » 5/ 2 (644) (2,404)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZESRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 23 38,146 60,926
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non- cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

METEDAMEEARZHIE

TRAVNAEERERHAELABZEH (B
EReMIFRCEY) RELGDAELRET
ReRnBeCK(IARKAEREFRE)RNAEKH
REREREXRTHIEABELTINELRS
mEZBAEe.

Total liabilities

Convertible Lease from financing

bonds liabilities activities

RMETDREE

RRES HESE BEAHE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000

FHAT FAT FHT

At 1 April 2018 RZZE—NFWMA—H 20,783 - 20,783

Interest expenses FERFX 3,835 - 3,835

At 31 March 2019 RZE—-NF=ZA=+—H 24,618 - 24,618

Adjustment upon application of ERE B BRE %R
HKFRS16 BB 2 & - 20,517 20,517
At 1 April 2019 (Restated) R-ZZE-NEFNA—H

(L2&E3) 24,618 20,517 45,135

Financing cash flow BERERE - (3,626) (3,6286)

Interest expenses MERX 4,547 718 5,265
Extinguishment upon extension of ~ EHAF B EHEHEE

convertible bonds (19,418) - (19,418)
Recognition upon extension of FEER TR AR B 5 1R O FERR

convertible bonds 11,793 - 11,793

New leases entered FINETHE - 2,148 2,148

Rent concession HeEHR - (460) (460)

Exchange adjustments IE 5 - (1,183) (1,183)

At 31 March 2020 RZZE-EF=A=+—H 21,540 18,114 39,654

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activity of Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Company’'s subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The head office and principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Unit
202, 2/F., Chinaweal Centre, 414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong
Kong. The Company has its primary listing on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) consider the Company's
ultimate holding company to be Beglobal Investments
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

a) Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of GEM Listing Rules and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

LFEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 2(b).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS
186") (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 Leases
(before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEHEENZRE (FH)

a)

mBLE X (18)

RENEFEAMBERRAEMRZE

SETBERBAINT - br B A RN
HEBRRERA2BINZEFEER
FEF - BRANFTR] R ER] BB M3
SEARHAEEGREBHHRRDO
FE (WA WERHFE2(b) -

iR e M1 R TR R 2 AR AR AR

el

BELRA-—RERBRBERER
BimeTIREZRFE.

REEDNENHE2EE ZBENE
RETHNEFRZTHE—HEE
FIREB M ERRER —REEMRX
NEERE BERZERIEERBEERES
MR RERAE M EERMEL
MG -EHEEXRBENRFERE
AR AEREZET HHE2EE
EFfERARREERBBETEE
HEEERNZEFE-REFLHEA
PHHRRPABRHEBENRTE
BRI EETAEE BB BR
AR FE 25T AR 10 /3 T Y (5 R ED
EARARND RERO MRS 5
ARBEEMGHREENF165RH
E([EEVMBRELENEI165])
(BT NFHEA-HB)XEE
SHEAFE17REE (RERBTEY
BHRELRNFE1BHKANNEER S R
HEANTFERUETIIHFAFENTE
(PlamEEEFERERFEFH
AR FELE LS ERIFE365
BERETHOEREE) R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

b) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2019/20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

In addition, the Group has early adopted the following
amendment of HKFRS, which is relevant to its
operations.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment is issued in June 2020 and is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2020. Earlier application is permitted,
including interim or annual financial statements not
authorised for issue as at 4 June 2020, the date of
the amendment is issued.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions” allow lessee to elect not to assess
whether a rent concession occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic is a lease
modification. Such practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct conseqguence
of the Covid-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration
for the lease immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEHEENZRE (FH)

b)

TR 2N 57 52 0 R A R R BT R AR B ET
BERMBHREER(E)

AN REBCRERAATEEY
BREERWER] BELEHER:

BB R 16 IEET —
FERERENEE R

ZIEFTER_ZT_ZTFAEME
RZE-_TFA-—BRZERNF
B S MR EIE AR - ZIER] RFTR
BER BENEMAH_ZT_FTF
NAOBREREZRMODHKRF
R TEmR -

EREVBREERFI16RNET X
(FERSRERBESRR]
AEAZETIHIREEHRHLT
REESRBFEENHEEERTE
MEER- WATREZFHEERR
BEEARFUERBEERBELN
MeEEY AAZR TIIME G-

s MEMNFWMEHEHEERESR
Pk Mg RERE
EE2BMEEREABHER:
HORERLHAHERE:

o MHENFWMIMREBEEFZER
A A-—E-_—F A=+
SEWATON N

o BB ERR B LR
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

ANNUAL
2019/20

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (Continued)

A lease applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes were not
lease madifications. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to
reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which the event occurs.

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material effect on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 16

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17
and the related interpretations.

The Group applied the following accounting policies in
accordance with the transition provisions of HKFRS
18.

REPORT &3

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 16 (Continued]

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC})-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts
that were not previously identified as containing a
lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the date of
initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of 1 April 2019, the Group applies the
definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing
whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts
equal to the related lease liabilities adjusted by any
prepaid or accrued lease payments by applying
HKFRS 16.C8(b](ii) transition. Any difference at the
date of initial application is recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and comparative information has
not been restated.

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES

MEBREENZRE (E)
b)  FAZN 4 B3R 4 R HT 3T RATAEAT

BRMBREER(E)

EREBUBHREEREIGHE 2%
ERETBRREE (B)

HEZE#

AEECEERITRE L BLEA
EREBGENE17HREER (
REMBEHRERERES) —REF4
HIEELHEERRBREE]#AA
HEZAENEREBEME RS LR
FE165% - ML AT RBR A E
EHEZAHMEAZERN At K
SEYEEFRFIERNEXNEREH
REFEZRH-

AR -_FT—NAFOA—HHZEF
TSR ZAENTE  ANEBERFGE
BHREECHERREZTEVHK
HEERIE165 P E 2 R A
BE2EHE-

TEAEATAA

AEBCDEYERBENBREE
AI£165% RFFER B RER B H
(ZZ-NFHA—HB)ER-

R-ZFE-NFOA—RB AEEES
RABIFR 5 ¥R 5 2RI 5 16.C8(b)
(i) 52 R R X HERBEINEERE
MEREEE HeBSNBBER
BNk EANEENRAENEEE
HERE -BXEAARNEIMER
MBI Rt EiEhER B EST
LB AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND 2.
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEHEENZRE (FH)

STANDARDS (Continued)

b) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are b) RAFEBREIEMOFTREEBT
mandatorily effective for the current year ERMBmERER (E)
(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of JERE B BHREEREI6HEZ %
application on HKFRS 16 (Continued) LBRETFHEZZE (E)

As a lessee [Continued) 1EAREFAN (&)

When applying the modified retrospective approach R EE BRIRE B M WS 2R

ANNUAL
2019/20

under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on
lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the

F1B5E RSB N AR - Nk E
HBERBEESETENFI7HD
BRELEENZEE NEBEEEZ
At aXanHESNHAHEKE

respective lease contracts: NEAUTERESER:

i.  relied on the assessment of whether leases are . BAERAEBEEREI7HR
onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, [BE IABERIAREE]
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as ERBEERN 2ERFE T
an alternative of impairment review; HHERETERE:

i. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial
application; and

ii.  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied incremental borrowing rates of the
relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group entities
was 3.5%.

REPORT &3

i. EEHEHEVRERBAHSI2
BARNTHEZEE TS HERE
RAEEESREERE K

i. MNYBERBMFEERAESR
EE R RS T30 BB AR o

ERBESIRAREHO 2 HERE
RHEERER A5EERAEBEEHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

b) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 16 (Continued]

2. REBELRMIIRIEBITES
MEREENZRE(E)

b) RAFEBRHERNHTREBST
BERMBHEER(E)

EREBUBHREEREIGHE 2%
ERETBRREE (B)

As a lessee [Continued) 1EAREFAN (&)
At 1 April
2019
R=-ZE—h#F
A—H
HK$'000
FET
Operation lease commitments disclosed as at RZE-—NF=H=+—H
31 March 2019 WML ERE 24,815
Less: Practical expedient — leases with lease term 8, : AITTHEET & — HEBEE X
ending within 12 months from the date of FEFA B ERRE1 218 A R 45 R
initial application MHEE (322)
24,493
Less: Total future interest expenses T R RF B S B s (2,610)
Other tax HinHi1E (1,366)
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 RZE-—hFEA—BH
HEBE 20,517
Analysed as: DA
Current BN ER 2,850
Non-current JERDHA 17,667
20,517

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND 2. WREZELDRMITREEITESR

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MEREENZEE (E)
STANDARDS (Continued)
b) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are b) RAFEBREIEMOFTREEBT
mandatorily effective for the current year ERMBmERER (E)
(Continued)
Impacts and changes in accounting policies of JERZEBHEEAEIER 2%
application on HKFRS 16 (Continued) LBRETFHEZZE (E)
As a lessee [Continued) 1EAREFAN (&)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own RZZT—-—NFMNA—B BRFEAE
use as at 1 April 2019 comprises the following: BEEMNREEEBENT:
Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
HK$'000
FET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases KRB AN GRS ER
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 165 R R L &
HERB o EREEE 21,323
Impact of transition to HKFRS 16 on accumulated BEZEEABEIREERE 1654
losses AR E
The transition to HKFRS 16 has no impact on accumulated BEEE SV HEELE165% Y
losses at 1 April 2018. —TE—-hENA—HBESEEY

ANNUAL
2019/20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND 2.

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

b) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impact of transition to HKFRS 16 on the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at 1 April 2013. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEREENZRE(E)

b) RAFEBRHERNHTREBST
BERMBHEER(E)

BREEBMBHREERAFE 165 E
HEMBNIBRZZE

RZZE-NFHUA-AHEENHK
ARNKRPHERNSHETHRARL
T-HEZIIXEGHTE AR -

included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously Impact of under
reported at adopting HKFRS 16 at
31 March 2019 HKFRS 16 1 April 2019
R-B-N#F
SEATR A—H&#
—E-NF KBS B iR 5 A
=Z=A=t—H B R Al EI16HET
EHNEEE  HI16HRNTE ZIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET
Non-current asset *ERBEE
Right-of-use assets TREEE - 21,323 21,323
Current asset RBEE
Other receivables, deposits HAth IR 1Re &
and prepayments BB 2,932 (806) 2,126
Current liability REEE
Lease liabilities HEAE - (2,850) (2,850)
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE - (17,667) (17,667)
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from Wit BEEZE-_FE-_FF=FA=+—H

operating activities under indirect method for the

year ended 31 March 2020, movements in working

capital have been computed based on opening

consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
April 2019 as disclosed above.

LEFE IR 5 75 0E & KB A
LB R MEME 4L
FrgeE SEERNEGTIIREE
E-FE-NFOA— BB
BRI BRI R E -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

c) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions®

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of

and HKAS 28 Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020.

ﬁ ANNUAL REPORT £
2019/20

2. REBELRMIIRIEBITES

MEBREENZRE (E)
c) EIEMRE M REMZHT REBT

BERUBHREER

7K £ B3 4 98 2 e A UL R B AR 18
4 5K A R 38T G AE T BB B A
SERSE

ERUMBRELNETE RRAY
EAMBREENEI6E  FOREREEE

(B31%) BRI RS

BRMBHEERE3N® FBOTER
(EATK)

FRAUBREENSEI0NE RAEREBED
BR &5 EAF28H AFAELEL
(B31%) HCEEHER

il

BRGHEARIBREE  BAHESR
ERRSELTACHES)

FRAVBREENEGR B MEAERE
i AR REEN B
REERHE7(BEIX)

1 MR-E-—F—A—-H®kZR&HA
ZEE R ER -

2 HWERSRA-Z _ZTF—A—H
g2 RFABMEEFERRTHZ
BOEBAHREEREEY -

&
%

£ B Es 2 KR ey E HIR

e L E T
RN

—E-SENA-ARZERN
2B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

c)

d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all the new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it contrals an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES

MEBHREEZTE (E)
c) BB M R 2R RS

d)

BRMBREER(E)

L EBHEHRE LR ZHAT &
ERTARSN R Z (M BREMS
BR) ER-F— \FRM HEE
B3] (BB BHREER T HHTE
RBEEBL) BR_T_TF—A—
Bk &Fia < FEME AR -

AAREZTAHERMAAE ] LK
ERRBMBRELNNATERLR
KT @HRAMBBRRELEKX

=4
A

REREEXE

RAVBHREREEARBAARAR
FAINEMBAREH 2 ERZ TG
K o W1 A AT R BIAR 2 7]
BEHIE:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

d)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

REPORT &3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

d)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEHEENZRE (FH)

d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

e)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associate used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise in the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

e)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

e)

f)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Investment in an associate (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in
an associate but the Group continues to use the
equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

f)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group of
cash-generating units, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a
group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

g)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straightline method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Leasehold improvement

Plant and machinery 10%

Computers 25-33%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Moator vehicles 25%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (‘ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, loan to an associate and payment to
parties for procurement for investment of cinema
business) which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables are
assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances and collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020

BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(i

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(i

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued]

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has
an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood
definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_FE_FF=FA=1+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND 2.
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEREENZRE(E)

STANDARDS (Continued)
h) Financial instruments (Continued) h) £®mIE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) TEEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TR EERE (E)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) (il EERRBRAEEN(E)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness AEETHERRANU#ANEE
of the criteria used to identify whether there o= NN Nl xSl 0
has been a significant increase in credit risk xﬁl WA i E RER VBB ET -
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that i R B B IR ZEBE S FUIE B
the criteria are capable of identifying significant HA AT R{E B R ANE LA o
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
(i) Definition of default (il EHTZE

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collateral held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(i} Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets [(Continued)

(iv]  White-off policy

(v]

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over one
year past due, whichever occurs sooner.

Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(v]  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)]

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped by aging
basis.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial asset

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial asset (Continued]

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’'s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible bond

Convertible bonds issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liability and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’'s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is measured as the present value of the
future interest and principal payments, discounted at
the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of the fair value of
the compound instrument over the amount initially
recognised as the liability component is recognised
as the equity component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bond (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in reserve of equity
component of convertible bonds until either the bond
is converted or redeemed.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net
of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
share premium. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. A
substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability or a part of it (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the Group) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment. The exchange or maodification is
considered as non-substantial modification when
such difference is less than 10 per cent.

When the contractual terms of a convertible
instrument are modified, the revised terms would
result in a substantial modification from the original
terms, after taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances including qualitative factors, such
modification is accounted for as derecognition of the
original financial liability and the recognition of new
financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

i)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and other assets other than
goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, and right-of-use assets with finite useful
lives and other assets to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

i)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and other assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEHEENZRE (FH)

i)

ME - BERRE CERAEEE
REBUSINNEMEENRE(E)

HEAEE (RS ELEM)INA
Yl & RBIERNEREE MEE (3
ReEEEM)MERESAREHR
A E SRR AE —HME
ENRERSTELENNEEEE
KD EEEE BRARGLER—
BEEMNNReELEUREE (2R
ErkEndiieELBEUNGE
BESAMOLEEENREE) HZ
MRS ELBEUMNAIKRESE - KD
FOREREER RZ B —HARE
ELXEURAEENKREEMGL
PInEEEEE -BEREMETSRD
EEREQXFERBEXAR (WA F
B) HEREE(WAEE)RTZ
THRSE-CRTIEEEERNM
EEESHEELI D EEZEMLNL
—HRTELBEUMHEMEE BE
ERENER MR TR o

B EREERER B EE (KR
CELBUN—HRSELEMN) N
REES EREHEKETNEE
WEleE EREE EENREET
SHLUEE (XReELEML—A
ReELEM)NBEFELEER
TR 1E 185 18 By B TE MY R T 1B o RU(EL B 1
BENIEE P HER o

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LLeEEZERARAE

=5



o5

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

)

k)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months of maturity when
acquired. Cash and cash equivalents include
investments and advances denominated in foreign
currencies provide that they fulfill the above criteria.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents would also
include bank overdrafts and advances from banks
repayable within three months from the date of the
advance.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.

Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure to settle the obligation. Where it is not
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1) Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in Note 2(b]]

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2(b])

(i) Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative
standalone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that
the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2(b])
(Continued)

(ii]

(i)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of staff
guarters that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2(b])
(Continued)

i} Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

1) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2(b])
(Continued)

(iv]

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2(b])
(Continued)

(iv] Lease liabilities [(Continued)

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in
market rental rates are initially measured using
the market rental rates as at the
commencement date. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to
changes in market rental rates following a
market rent review, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2(b])
(Continued)

]

Lease maodifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as
a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that
stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the maodification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of
lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.

ANNUAL REPORT ik

2019/20

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEHEENZRE (FH)

HE(E)

AREBERAMA (IRIEH E2(b) AT
A2 B LB T e BB R TS 3 &
RIFE165E1&) (&)

]

HE 24

MHBATER AEEEH
HEMERIES —BERFNE
EAK:

o RHEBEURBEIER—
R LA A E R
BATHEHE: &

e MEREHZLM BMHE
BEENBEERNE RN
BBER LR RRE
ERHNERBIRMm S E
BEBETHNEIMEEH

%%o

RARIEA—HEBHEHEARD
HEBHRME AEEENE
BERE R AR A HNEEET
MR RBBEETHEN R
REEENHRERTEMR

Ea8E-

AEEBBHEHREREEE
ETHERAR HHBEANE
EREEMIEETEEE
EERERNARESHEMAK
oM —fEXZ EEMBEENK
FHEEARBIK AEES
RIBHEAKR LD W B BL
B8 KR IETHE AR D 14258
Y ERBERRNERTEE
EoEESEBEEKED -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 April 2019]

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are
considered as integral part of lease payments, the
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

m) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° the Group’'s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s abligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

m)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The performance obligations of the Group for
contracts with customers are summarized as
follows:

Cinema investment and management

The Group sells movies tickets, snacks and
accessories to customers both through its own
cinema and through internet sales.

Income from box office takings is recognised when
the movies have been broadcasted and revenue from
selling snacks and accessories is recognised when
control of goods have been transferred to the
customers. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
movies tickets, snacks and accessories.

The advertising income represents the display of
some advertising materials in the area of the cinema
and the airtime right before the start of a movie. The
income of the former is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the contract terms with a fixed amount.
For the latter, the income is recognized over the
contract terms and the amount of revenue is
correlated to the box office takings of the movie with
the airtime.

For others, it mainly represents the services charges
for registration of membership and the charges for
the re-issuance of membership cards for those lost
cases. The income was recognized when the
membership cards were issued to the members.

A contract liability is recognised for the prepayment
made by the customers in the membership cards.
The balance will be recognised as revenue at the
point when movies are broadcasted or when the
customers purchase snacks and accessories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

n)

o)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss
before tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

o)

Income tax (Continued)

The performance obligations of the Group for
contracts with customers are summarized as
follows:

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

o)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Income tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the rightof-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to the
leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

p)

a)

r)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages, salaries, annual leaves
and sick leaves) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Share-based payment arrangement

Share options granted to directors and employees in
an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

r)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Share-based payment arrangement

Share options granted to directors and employees in
an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement
(Continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

r)

Share-based payment arrangement (Continued)
Share options granted to advisors

For share options granted to advisors in exchange for
services, they are measured at the fair value of the
services received. If the entity cannot estimate reliably
the fair value of the services received, the entity shall
measure their value, indirectly, by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. The fair
values of the services are recognised as expenses
immediately, unless the services qualify for recognition
as assets, with corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

Share award scheme

The Group operates a share award scheme for the
purpose of providing incentive for employees to
achieve performance goals and aligning the interests
of employees directly to the shareholders of the
Company through ownership of shares of the
Company.

The amount to be expensed as share-based
compensation expenses is determined by reference
to the fair value of the awarded shares granted,
taking into account all non-vesting conditions
associated with the grants. The total expense is
recognised over the relevant vesting periods (or on
the grant date if the shares vest immediately), with a
corresponding credit to the share award scheme
reserve under equity.

For those awarded shares which are amortised over
the vesting periods, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of awarded shares that are expected
to ultimately vest based on the vesting conditions at
the end of each reporting period. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative expense recognised in
prior years is recognised in profit or loss in the
current year, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share award scheme reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

s)

t)

ANNUAL
2019/20

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognized initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group’s interests in associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

t)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company, that is HKS,
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

u) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the entity that is preparing its financial statements

(“reporting entity”).

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to a reporting entity if that

person:

() has control or joint control over the
reporting entity;

(i) has significant influence over the reporting

entity; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the reporting entity or of a
parent of the reporting entity.

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the reporting entity are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entities is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2019/20

WRBBEEL R RIEEBITES
MEHEENZRE (FH)

u) BEEAL

BEALNERRRMBREAZE
B(ImEEBDABZALER-

(a)

ZEANTRAUT IS Z
BAANTHERK ZAHERE
HEE R

() HHRESEREHZGEX

i & 12 ) 4

H_T_ng

(i) HMEERBEEEATE
78k

(i) AREETRERIARSERS
RAIZEBEEERE -

L/(Tfi’rﬂflﬂ-“kﬁﬁ
b

m%

I‘ BZ,% Eﬂ! 7
L= PNSIDSIEEN PN
& B AE B R R

i) X EBEBAZ—EBZH
BRARIKABERR] RA
S—EEMBEEARN
BrHBERAIHALR
3

(i) BERHAR-—F=724
WA

iv)] BRAF=-HEBEZAYL
RE mME—EBEBAE=
FERCBENT:



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND IMPACT OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

u) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-empolyment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the reporting entity or an entity related to
the reporting entity. If the reporting entity
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the
reporting entity;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provide key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

v) Films in progress and film rights

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated at cost
incurred to date, less any identified impairment loss.
Cost is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Their costs are
amortised over the underlying licence period, with
reference to projected revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020

Bz

—EFF=A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
activities. Management will increase the depreciation
and amortisation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable and
amortisation lives and therefore depreciation and
amortisation expense in future periods.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2019/20

EX &4t R FER

AEERBOEEERMEMAR (BER
ﬁ%ﬁ%1ﬂT@Aﬁ¥$Z%%$ﬁﬁ
HD) B R4 (a5t S

AEBERBBARKZ A RRE-HEE
EL @t EREBD ERBERS
GEIEE

HEREERIGTEHELEN - WATE
ERIESEREI ZHEE S AE e
mE ﬁﬁZfJ%K&%ﬁW%E‘Mﬁ
BRTEIRR R ARBHEY S ERFZ
GRERIEET R AR KRR ER - B Al g5 &
BTV BRFEEERGERMELRE
RNAR zERNRER 2B RERHRAT

a) ¥ BERRBZAUEAFH

AEEEEEBTNF BB R&E
PACEIDINC IR DI E R DNE:
HEM - IRIEMEE kIR
FZW%E - BEREZEERAERF
M2 BERRIEL WA s ERIAY
%&%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁiéﬁz
TEMERERES - Z R EAFH
(iR S “EE%PM%&
NEHE R - 508 M OB BT A
RACDEAINEZIFRBEE T
M At EHENERBEHEFR
HERMEPEETRIITERBHERA
Lo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

b)

c)

Impairment of goodwill, related property, plant
and equipment, and right-of-use assets

Determining whether goodwill, related property, plant
and equipment, and right-of-use assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash- generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables,
loan to an associate and payments to parties
for procurements for investment of cinema
business

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on
aging as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision rates are based on the
Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes as the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired, if any, are assessed for ECL individually.

The Group assesses the ECL of loan to an associate,
other receivables and payments to parties for
procurement for investment of cinema business
individually based on past repayment record of the
counterparties.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of loan to
an associate, trade receivables, other receivables,
and payments to parties for procurement for
investment of cinema business are disclosed in
Notes 4(b)(iii), 19, 20, 21 and 22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. €MIR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €WMIAER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of AEEXERNEREERBEN®
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as at the EHRZEREENT :

end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020 2019
—E-ERF —E-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured at amortised Z#EK A EN S REE E
cost
Trade receivables JE U AR R 132 969
Loan to an associate m—EBE AR EER 17,512 33,808
Financial assets included in other FEAHMEWRRIERIZS
receivables and deposits LEBMEE 1,468 1,423
Payments to parties for procurement — B E R EBK RS H
for investment of cinema business YAtz A 1,452 5,412
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIRS 38,146 60,926
58,710 102,538
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities measured at REHERAGEZEMEE
amortised cost
Trade payables JE - BRR 347 909
Financial liabilities included in other FT K OB R EE
payables and accruals REZEHEE 3,342 2,969
Convertible bonds AR ES 21,540 24,618
25,229 28,496
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group'’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

0}

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign currency.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales, purchases and
recognised assets and liabilities that are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States Dollars (‘USD")
and Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group currently does not expect any
significant movements in the exchange rate of
USD to HKD and it is mainly exposed to the
effects of fluctuation in RMB. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. £MIAGE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBEMEEBEMNRBEGE)
(Continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (] SMERF (&)

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective.

The carrying amounts of RMB denominated

REBEBRERFUR—BH
JEHE.EEM\EH Zﬁkﬁﬁ Iup
REB -

R IR AR EE S

monetary assets at the end of the reporting BEEMEREBENT:
period are as follows:
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
-t —E-NEF
=A=t—HA =A=t1—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Bank balances and cash RITHBRRE S 18,732 11,541
Loan to an associate MEE R RIREER 17,512 33,808
Payments to parties for procurement st3% 4 2 Fm%ﬂ‘xﬁxﬁ
for investment of cinema business X Z 32 1,452 5,412
Sensitivity analysis GURRIE DT
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRETIR i&iﬁﬂﬂi$'§ ETNET]
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and & 55 K [ fgx 1Y S| R B A

accumulated losses) that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all
other risk variables remained constant. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong Dollar and the United
States Dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States Dollar against other currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

U}

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

4. ®MTA(E)

(b) MBEEMREEENRBEE(E)

(il SMNERB (&)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) VST ()
2020 2019
s et 23 —ENE

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) Loss after (decrease) Loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange  accumulated

rates losses rates losses

ExtA/ BRHEBE ExtA/  RIGESB

() REEE (%) REFER

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THT

Renminbi AR# 5% 1,574 5% 2,119
(5%) (1,574) (5%) (2,119)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’'s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020

BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii]

(iii]

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
loan to an associate rates.

The Group is exposed to the cash flow interest
rate risk due to its bank deposits, carrying
interest at variable rates which is disclosed in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements and fair value interest rate risk due
to its convertible bonds carrying interest at
fixed rates which are disclosed in Note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements
respectively. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy and does not
use any derivative instruments to reduce its
economic exposure to the changes in interest
rates.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group’s
convertible bonds bore an imputed interest at
fixed rate are carrying minimal interest rates.
Management considers the exposure to the
changes in market interest rate should not be
materially enough to cause adverse financial
effect on the Group's position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would fail
to discharge its obligation under the terms of
the financial instrument and cause a financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk mainly arises from the ordinary
course of its operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020

BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii]

Credit risk [(Continued)

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, trade and other receivables
and deposits, loan to an associate and
payments to parties for procurement for
investment of cinema business. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Cash at bank are placed with high-credit-quality
institutions and directors of the Group consider
that the credit risk for such is minimal.

In respect of trade receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. Debtors
with overdue balances, which will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis, are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect
of trade and other receivables, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually or based on provision
matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

liii]  Credit risk (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to
have low credit risk and therefore the loss
allowances are measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime ECL provision for
all trade receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and ECL. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

As at 31 March 2020 and 20189, trade
receivables that are individually significant and
credit impaired have been separately assessed
for impairment. The Group makes periodic
assessments on the recoverability of the
receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical
settlement records and past experience.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from
debtors in relation to cinema investment and
management operation. The Group’s trade
receivables arise from revenue of these business.
In view of the history of business dealings with
the debtors and the sound collection history of
the receivables due from them, management
believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’'s outstanding receivable
balance due from these debtors saved for the
debtor related to the impaired trade receivable
disclosed below. Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade
and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and whether
there are any disputes with the debtors. The
directors consider the Group’s credit risk of
these receivables to be low except for the
impaired trade receivable disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

liii]  Credit risk (Continued)

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment
allowance. As at 31 March 2020, the balance
of loss allowance in respect of these individually
assessed receivables was HK$325,000 (2019:
HK$11,000).

The following table presents the balances of
gross carrying amount and the loss allowance
in respect of the individually assessed
receivables as at 31 March 2020 and 20189:

4.

&MTA(E)

(b)

BHEAREEENRBE(E)

(i)

1B (&)

BREMFEVBRENT P
oK 101 i M 7 7 B K ek ] ) B
HRIEE IR E BB R EL
BRFE - R =FF=H
=+ — A @5 ¥4 &9 & UK
TE ) &5 18 B 4 45 #42 /2325,000
BT(ZT—N%:11,0008
JT) °

TREWRZ-ZZE_ZEFR_F
—NW=A=+—HERFHEE
W R IE R B N R RS

—+ .
REER -

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H

2020 2019

—ECEF —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FHET

Gross carrying amount FREAE 325 11
Loss allowance EBEEE (325) (11
Net carrying amount FREDFE - -

The credit quality of loan to an associate, other
receivables and payments to parties for
procurement for investment of cinema business
has been assessed with reference to historical
information about the counterparties default
rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The directors are of the opinion
that the credit risk of these debtors is low due
to the sound collection history of the receivables
due from them. Therefore, expected credit loss
rate of these debtors is assessed to be close
to zero and no provision was made as of 31
March 2020 and 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

liii]  Credit risk (Continued)

The following tables show the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables under the simplified approach:

ﬁmﬂla (nlﬁ)

(b)

MHEAREERNRBE(E)

(i) 1EERRZ (&)

TRIVRBRIBE BT A #R
R 2 RARBERER

Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired) Total
X X A
FEEE#R
(E8mHE) &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
As at 1 April 2018 R-ZE—N\FMA—H - -
Impairment losses recognised EHERRERERE 11 11
As at 31 March 2019 R-E-HIF
=A=+—H 11 11
Impairment losses recognised CHERREBR 325 325
Write-offs i 85 (11) (11)
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZEBEZEHF
=A=+—H 325 325
Concentration risk £

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and sundry debtor rather than the
industry or country in which the customers and
sundry debtors operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers or sundry debtors. As
at 31 March 2020, 67% (2019: 50%) of the
total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest trade debtor. 92% (2019:
96%) of the total other receivables and
deposits and loan to an associate was due from
an associate of the Group. The concentrations
of the credit risk related to payments to parties
for procurement for investment of cinema
business can be referred to Note 22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(iv]  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
assets. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of trade payables, other
payables and accruals and convertible bonds
and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to
maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets
and committed lines of funding to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the board of directors when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

4.

&MTA(E)

(b)

BHEAREEENRBE(E)

(iv]

RBEZ AR

nBEERRTER AR EE
FRTEESREBEEMEBREE
MR MxEFeMBEARS
BRNBETHZ—EERMEE
KB - NREE LB RN IR
HA A RA R B ER R
BREFEETDEZRR
NRHEREREEEERBE
TERBR - AEENERSER
BE R RE B EKF M ARG
MIEERE UWENEHER
HoRBEeHRK-

AEEEMNEEQRRBTREA
Bee BRReBH A
HREREEEFARNEH
Red R HERERELET
JEE KK TR BIZASERE
EFEedfE-AEE-EEH
ERHNERRBDESTF R
URRENMEBERE AR
REBRRRESREBRESR
ZBEERS BREI2emHM
BARREAERWES BNE
HEERHARSHESFEK.

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LLeEEZERARAE

27



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. &£MIRE)

(b) BHEAREEENRBEE(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(b)

(iv)] Liquidity risk (Continued) (v] REEDREE (&)

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to
be effective in managing liquidity risks.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual

AEEBBEBFUR—EMN
RARBESHRR TRSHHA
MEERBE SRR -

TRAENREHRANEEIELT
EemMBE(RAHWIFHAR
EREFE BRERAOMNE
FFBHE (A RBEHARE
BZHME)FEZRMFE) 2
R W2 EH ARAK AR A

rates or, if floating, based on the rates current WESER ZFRARZFE:
at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date the company can be required to

pay:
2020
t 23
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Effective undiscounted ~ 1vyearor  lessthan  less than
interest Carrying  cash flow  on demand 2 years 5years  More than
rate amount EHFEEE  -FRF SR-FE SRWEE 5 years
BRRE REE REREAE EEX  ORWE  SREF  SRER
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'0OO
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Trade payables ERER - 347 347 347 - - -
Financial liabilities included st AE M ERFIE R
in other payables ez 2RER
and accruals - 3,342 3,342 3,342 - - -
Convertble bonds mHRES 15.91 21,540 30,000 10,000 - 15,000 5,000
25,229 33,689 13,689 - 15,000 5,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iv]  Liquidity risk (Continued]

4. ®MTA(E)

(b) MBEEMREEENRBEE(E)

(iv] n"BETREE (&)

2019
“ENE
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within -~ 1 year but 2 years but

Effective undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
interest Carrying  cash flow  on demand 2 years Syears  More than
rate amount  AAVFEER  —FR% SR-FE  SRREFE 5 years
ERA% FHE Beness fEZ% PRRE SREE SRAE
%  HKFOOD  HKEOOO  HK$OOO  HK$OOO  HKS0OO  HK$OOO
TFiEn ARG ThEL FiEn ThL ThEr
Trade payables ERER - 909 909 909 - - -
Financial liabilities included ~ 5f AEth /58 )
in other payables s HEC AR
and accruals - 2,969 2,969 2,969 - - -
Convertible bonds HRES 16.73 24,618 30,000 - 30,000 - -
28,496 33,878 3,878 30,000 - -

(c) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2020 and 20189.

(c) A¥E

AEEZBEHEAAYEZER T A
CEEEEEAN ST -_ZTER-FT
—hWF=ZA=Z+—HZAFELE
ERER-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

X



20!

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020

Bz

5.

—EFF=A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group's
operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
two operating segments for the year:

Cinema investment and management — cinema
investment and provision of cinema management service.

Filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and
licensing businesses — movie production, licensing and
derivatives, crossover marketing, provision of interactive
contents, artist development and last miles engagement.

The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions.

Segment result represents the profit or loss by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ salaries, investment and other income,
finance costs, other loss, share-based payments and
income tax expense. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020

BE_F_FF-HA=1—HIFE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue,
results, assets and liabilities by reportable and operating

RILA 2

SWEH (E)

BREED DT AER 2 Wz
¥E - BERAG-

segment.
Year ended 31 March 2020 Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-Z-ZF=A=t-HLEE HE-Z-NE-A=t-BILEE
Filmed Filmed
entertainment, entertainment,
Cinema new media Cinema new media
investment  exploitations investment  exploitations
and  and licensing and  and licensing
management  businesses Total  management businesses Total
E¥RY. ﬁ/fb&x
PR HREEER g BRBRR
REREE  KIEER @it  RARER %aﬂ’é%f% @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Segment Revenue 22,888 - 22,888 38,048 - 38,048
Segment Results 2Bl
Reportable segment result 2R DEE (13,901) (1,769) (15,670) 217 (1,008) (786)
Unallocated corporate income RABEERA 1,279 1,405
Unallocated corporate expenses FAEGERT (18,823) (20,227)
Other loss EfhEE (14,512) -
Share-based payments WRG BEE 2457 (1,720) (2,181)
Finance costs BEMA (5,265) (3,835)
Loss before taxation BRAIER (54,711) (25,624)
Segment Assets AHEE
Reportable segment assets AERHPEE 31,007 7,813 38,820 47,126 20,002 67,128
Interests in an associate R-BEEATNER 169 502
Loan to an associate EF-HBERRNER 17,512 33,808
Unallocated corporate assets ROMCEEE 25,841 13,813
Consolidated total assets GREEnE 82,342 115,251
Segment Liabilities AHER
Reportable segment liabilities AERHPER 26,790 - 26,790 9,851 - 9,851
Tax payables FERHE - 1,084
Convertible bonds MRk ES 21,540 24,618
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBCERR 2,418 1,783
Consolidated total liabilities GRERERE 50,748 37,316
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020

2019/20

BE_FE_FF=FA=1+—HIFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SEREHE (E)

For the purposes of monitoring segment information and MERSHEHN RS HESEERNE :

allocating resources between segment:

—  all assets are allocated to reportable segments ather — MMBEESREFZ2MmH I MR —
than interests in an associate, loan to an associate i & QRIS - (m) — R B A A
and unallocated corporate assets. REERERDBEEEEERIN-

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments — MBEREESREFEZ®mH I - MEEN
other than tax payables, convertible bonds and WIE A MRESRRSEECEER
unallocated corporate liabilities. BRANe

Other segment information: Hitt 5 ZEHR -

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-Z-ZF=-fA=+-HLFE
Filmed
entertainment,
Cinema new media
investment  exploitations
and and licensing Corporate
management businesses level Total
FRE
P MREERR
REREE  BIEER tEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TET
Additions to property, plant and NE BERRERE
equipment 2,521 - - 2,521

Interest income MEMA 251 30 527 808

Other loss HibE51E 14,512 - - 14,512

Depreciation of property, plant and #@% BERRERE

equipment 2,407 - 25 2,432
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 3,141 = 690 3,831
Impairment of praperty, plant and nE- BERREAE

equipment 3,806 - - 3,806

Impairment of right-of-use assets FEREEENE 6,639 - 1,131 7,770

Impairment of trade receivables FE MR BR SRR (& 325 - - 325

Interest expenses on lease liabilties ~ HEEEHFE T 651 - 67 718
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SEEH(E)
Other segment information: (Continued) HitpH&ER : (8)

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE_ZT-NF=-A=+-HILFE

Filmed
entertainment,
Cinema new media
investment  exploitations
and  and licensing Corporate
management businesses level Total

AT
BYRE.

Fh HEBRER

RERER  BITEER rEER mst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T TEx FET
Additions to property, plant and NE BERRERE
equipment 1,135 - - 1,135
Interest income MEWA 285 195 528 1,008
Depreciation of property, plant and NE BERRXEAE
equipment 2,341 - 99 2,440
Impairment of trade receivables FEW RS R A 1 - - 1
Revenue from major products and services: RETEEMmREBEZWE
The Group’s revenue from its major products and services AEBREEZEERMERBZWELT :
were as follows:
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Cinema business b 15 22,888 38,048

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020

Bz

—EFF=A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information:

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location of the customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods or services. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is based
on the physical location of assets in the case of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, and the
location of the operation to which they are allocated in the
case of goodwill and interests in an associate. Revenue
from external customers and information about non-
current assets by geographical location are detailed

SEWEH (E)
WEER

AEBMEERNEFERFPEARLME ([H
BEEXRB - BEP 2RV EREPH
B D - T E fm SRS AR - 3ER B
BEZHBMUE WX BEEKEM
5 NREEBERMHE D MpLEE kR
—HEEARMNERME  AEEBES
LB SN -RAINEEP 2 W R iR
NEBNZIERBDEEEMFIIMT

below:
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENBEF 2 s REFRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
TE —T- 45 SB-FE T NF
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THT THIT
Hong Kong 5 - - 170 532
PRC F 22,888 38,048 17,349 10,672
22,888 38,048 17,519 11,204
Revenue from major customers: REEEFEFZWE

There are no major customers contributing over 10% of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2020

(2018: Nil).

REVENUE

An analysis of Group’s revenue for the year from

operations, is as follows:

BE_T_TF-_A=+t—HULEFE #
BEXEEPERMAKREREERBI0% (=
T-NEE)-

W i

RAREE REBEEEH 2 Wamn i

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue from cinema business CATE S Pl 22,888 38,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

REVENUE (Continued) ke (E)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFEHKZEMAD
customers
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Revenue from cinema business ATE 3 €
— Sales of movie tickets — HEBRE — X —BHEH
— at a point in time 18,806 31,225
— Sales of snacks — at a point in time — HEZTR — X —FHEE 2,651 4,238
— Advertising income - over time — BEEWA — B 590 1,655
— Management services income — BEBRRBUWA — BER
- over time 272 -
— Others (note) — Hith (KfaE) 569 930
Total #Er 22,888 38,048

note: It mainly represents the rental income for claw machines
placed in cinemas, service income for registration of
membership and the income for the re-issuance of
membership cards for those lost cases.

Contracts for advertising services typically have a 1 year
to 3 years non-cancellable term in which the Group bills a
fixed percentage on the box office takings. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

The customer loyalty points have no expiration and can be
redeemed anytime at customers’ discretion. The
management of the Group expected that the remaining
performance obligation as at 31 March 2020 will be
materially recognized as income within one to two years
after the year end.

Wizt : HEFZEREZLHMETEHHES KA
B 8 M e RE WA K % FEKXE NS
BETER FHRA -

BEERBAEN—RITAE —E=FHTAE
HIET HRAEBURERANEE R
DHRR AEEEREBRMBEHLR UKL
SEAREMAAEZNSERAR G BB
MBBREENEIGRAF I TRESRE
BRARERAONRHE-

BEPEHMERD WA AIBERER
FRERETA R AEEEEERHIRN
TECERF-A=+-HNFBRBEHELE
HNFRE - EMFAEL EERRBA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 7. Htk& R HMBUA
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Interest income T EHA 808 1,008
Government grants (note 1) TR (MEET) 598 157
Rent concession (note 2) HeER (WiE2) 460 -
Others HAth 1,594 922
3,460 2,087
notes: Bt
1. The government grants represent the subsidies received by 1. BRNEMEREERNTEEETRKE
the Group from the government for the operation of TR - BB MZ S M 2 RE
cinemas in PRC. There are no unfulfiled conditions or AR SR AR ETE -
contingencies relating to these grants.
2. It mainly represents rent concession provided to cinemas in 2. HIZHEBXR-_T-NFHEUERRE
PRC for the closure of business due to 20139 Novel (IFrEmE]) AT T ERE
Coronavirus (‘COVID-19"). HiRENASESR-
8. OTHER LOSS 8. HEH

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 5
February 2020, the Company has discovered that Mr. Yin
Gang (EP#d) ("“Mr. Yin"), a director of certain non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group, is suspected to have
misappropriated certain funds of the Group (the
“Incident”). Based on information obtained by the
Company, the Company believes that an aggregate
amount of up to approximately RMB13 million (equivalent
to HK$14,512,000) has been misappropriated by Mr. Yin
by way of bank transfer in November 2019. Mr. Yin has
resigned as directors and/or legal representatives (& A
X &) of subsidiaries of the Group before the date of
approval of this annual report. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Incident does not impact on
the day-to-day operations of the Group and does not have
a material adverse effect on its cash flow, financial
position and business operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

9.

10.

FINANCE COSTS 9. MBERE
2020 2019
—ECEF —FT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ER 2 HEE R 4,547 3,835
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MEBRGBZHEXH 718 -
5,265 3,835
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. FRIRATESIR
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRATATE BB MR T 5 & :
2020 2019
—EC-EE —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Auditor’'s remuneration ZE RN BN &
— audit services — RERK 800 800
— other services — HEb AR 920 -
Direct expenses of cinema business FREBEERX (FE1)
(note 1) 9,395 15,634
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BRERRETE
equipment 2,432 2,440
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 3,831 -
Property, plant and equipment written off #8547 % « B &= K& 7 55
Exchange loss bE 18 3,112 3,913
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥13 « BB & & # 2 BUE 3,806 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEEZRE 7,770 -
Impairment of trade receivables JE W R FORE 325 11
Operating lease rental in respect of rented FAYEZELHHES
premises - 5,179
Short-term lease expenses CHIHERX 422 -
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) 5 TR (BIEEEHE)
— Salaries and allowances — ¥ K2R 12,198 13,136
— Equity settled share-based payments — R EE ARG RER
pANE:S 1,186 1,848
— Retirement scheme contributions — RIRGETEI R 1,522 2,009
Equity settled share-based payments BB R R A E AR
paid to advisors RER 2R 534 333
note: Bt -
1. The direct expenses mainly represent the profit sharing 1. EBEERIXFERONEZHERER

paid to film providers.

DR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the Company's
directors for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019

were as follows:

11. EFM&

HEZZ_ZTFE-_F-NF=-A="1T—
HIEFEEMNSENARGESE ZHIS N
T

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE-ZE-_ZF=-A=1+—HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Share
Directors’ and other based
fee benefits payments Total
Eac =431 DN &)
EE=e REHMEN EREZAR ECE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET F&T
Executive Directors HITEF
Mpr. Chiau Sing Chi ISy e - - 610 610
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly Al 2+ 120 34 177 331
Mr. Lau Man Kit RIS E 120 - - 120
Non-executive Director FHITEF
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang  BR#EH %+
Roberta 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive BUHHITEF
Directors
Ms. Choi Mei Ping R4 120 - - 120
Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk ZEE LA 120 - - 120
Mr. Ong King Keung TR LS 120 - - 120
720 34 787 1,541
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

1. EE&(

==

&

)

Year ended 31 March 2019

BE_ZE-NF=ZA=+T—RBLLFE

Salaries,
allowances Share
Directors’  and other based
fee benefits  payments Total
e EE VARR AR &
FEMwe REMEN EWRIARK st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET FHET
Executive Directors HMITEE
Mr. Chiau Sing Chi JB 2 Bt e & - - - -
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly JE Xl 22+ 120 35 576 731
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (note) REZESE (HaE) 87 - - 87
Mr. Lau Man Kit RISk E 120 - - 120
Non-executive Director HHTESE
Mrs. Chin Chow Chung Hang  BREFEH 22+
Roberta 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive BUHHITEF
Directors
Ms. Choi Mei Ping BEFrt 120 - - 120
Mr. Tsoi Chiu Yuk ZEAB A 120 - - 120
Mr. Ong King Keung TR LS 120 - - 120
807 35 576 1,418

note: Resigned on 24 September 2018.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ and independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

Wit R-F-NFAA-THARE.

EXFRORITESTNME I REFRL
RRAFRAEEEEER MR RS M
S ffe

FPRAFERTEERBUIRTEEME T
ESRRERERARAES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

12. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 12. REFAR
Of the five individuals in the Group with the highest AEEhEERFMABES —B (=
emoluments, one of them (2019: one) is the director of —NF: —R)ARAIEE HE @NEEAL
the Company whose emoluments are disclosed above. The NEE- SR THA(ZE-AF:EE)A
emoluments of the remaining four individuals (2019: four), BZHMuT

are as follows:

2020 2019

—ECEF —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 2,013 2,572

Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 114 54

Staff share-based payments BTt 267 -

2,394 2,626

Analysis of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals IEGEaRFMAE (BEEERHEMES)
(including directors and other employees) by emolument ZEBIRFMEE 2 DTN T

range is as follows:

Number of employees

EEAH

2020 2019

—EBCEF —T-NF

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T AN 5 5
During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no REBEEZZT_FTFR_FT—-NLF=H
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest ST —HLEFEARA AEEW &R AL &K
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to SEHEWAE (BEES)XNEWN EAK
join the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In EMBAREE 7 REISIERBER 2 HE-
addition, during the years ended 31 March 2020 and N AREE T _FTFR T - NF=
2019, no directors waived any emoluments. A=+—BLEFEXN BIREZEHEELM

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

13. TAXATION 13. IRIA
2020 2019
—ECEHF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
The taxation charge recognised RiEm AR 2 RIEZ B
in profit or loss comprises: B
Current tax BVEARR 18
The PRC s 131 744
Under provision in prior years WEFERENR - 174
131 918

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
there is no assessable profits for the current year (2019:
Nil).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2020 and
20189.

RZZBE-NF=ZA=+—B BFBLEEG
BECCE—EFEHRK (BFT) (R75%) &
PIEZ) (MERPIEZE]) - 5| AFBFHMAR
H-ZENERR-_ZT-NF=ZA=Z+N
AREZFERRERE IRBAAB-RE
MEHMES AEREEER

2,000,0007% 7T M 8 Bt & /28.25% * i
# #@2,000,000/% T &% M B X &
16.5% ° N1 & RIS B M Al 1) SR B B B2
i ) S HEAE 1216.5% By Bt — Bl R -

o

AATEERA EHFGBREH %S
RESEEEANBREME TA - ME
G [ I R PN 16.5% 5t BB 8
R Bt

H A 6 2 3 4 B R A bk 3 S A
REBNEHEEB (ZF—NF &)

HE-_E-_ZEER-_FT—-NE=RA=+—
BHIEFEE BB QG BRNE25% 8
MBI EMER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020

Bz

—EFF=A=+—HIFE

13. TAXATION (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the
tax authority in the PRC has grant concessionary tax rate
at 20% to some of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company
because the size and assessable profits of those
subsidiaries have fulfilled the condition as small and micro

13. mlﬁ(mﬁ)

BHE—

corporations defined by the relevant tax authority.

BB A
MEA

—NF=R=+—
H JJ:EE EP !fﬂ%%a‘ﬁf'ﬂﬁﬂﬁ’&ﬁ%?qﬂ
ARLEENER20% ARZE
AR RR R RS M D E KA B
75 BB Y E 2 A/ R AR A

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss REEMIBEESEBR AN 2 BRTAE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or BHERMAT -
loss as follows:
2020 2019
—EC-EF = — N4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Loss before taxation R AIEE (54,711) (25,624)
Tax at the respective applicable tax rate REMERBEAE ZHIEA (11,497) (4,167)
Income not subject to taxation TEFB A (371) (457)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose Ik ﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁ‘kﬁﬁkz%ﬁﬁ 7,699 4,130
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERTBEEEIMETE 1,674 1,635
Tax effect of temporary difference not RERLREZHEIMBETE
recognised 2,844 15
Effect of tax concessions granted to PRC % ¥ B K8 A 55 7%
subsidiaries e B 2 (218) (312)
Under provision in prior years BEFEREBETR - 174
Taxation charged for the year REFEFEHRIAX 131 918
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2020

Bz

13.

14.

—EFF=A=+—HIFE

TAXATION (Continued)
Deferred tax assets not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses arising in the PRC and Hong Kong of
approximately HK$12,661,000 (2019: HK$12,840,000)
and approximately HK$59,597,000 (2019:
HK$53,505,000) respectively available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits stream. Under current tax
regulation, tax losses arising in the PRC can be carried
forward for five years from the year in which the
respective loss arose while the tax losses arising in Hong
Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$13,683,000
(2019: HK$34,5239,000). Withholding tax resulting from
the distribution of such profits would amount
approximately to HK$1,369,000 (2019: HK$3,453,000)
if they are distributed to holding companies/shareholders
outside of PRC. However, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in this respect as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

13.

14.

RIA (&)
REREEPIEAE

RBEEHR AKREEREFTFELEELZ
REAHIEEIED 5 412,661,000
T (ZZFE—NF:12,840,000% T) &
#4159,597,0008 T (ZZ — L%
53,505,000/% 7T ) AJ # /8 1 4 #8 K 2 i
A o p P 48K TRRI R 0% F 2RR - 830 8
ARABARABERIAETERRAEE 1R
BRRARBAN REFE 2 HEARERA
REBBEELFEEADFEE MR
B &8 2 8 & 18 R AT IR H A5

RERELEREARE

R|ERR WEBRBZARD KSR
13,689,000 T (=% — L5 :
34,529,000/ 7T ) - fis 1% L A B AN 2

BB BRER 1B 2K - RIS K A B R
MESE 2 BB A /1,369,000% 7T (=
T — N5 :3,453,000% 7T) c AT - BA
KRR RE %UE?—IA‘H%QTZH& BUR B R

RABETENA R KD IKZ S & il
ﬁﬁ?ﬁ&tﬁﬁm RIERIARE
B2

EXVAERRNBE_ZT _TF=H

=t+t—BLEFEZEARE (ZT—N%F:
&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE

15. BEREIS

Basic and diluted loss per share BREARBEER
2020 2019
—ECEHF —ZE-NF
HK cents HK cents
AL oAl
Total basic and diluted loss per share FREAR R EEEARE (4.85) (3.09)

The loss and weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
are as follows

RAGESREAREEBERZEBERRE
BN RS T

2020 2019
e —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Loss for the year attributable to owners RATHEE ANBORER
of the Company &1 (41,475) (26,410)
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share

METEERERNNEEERL
ERalvill: Bealie

855,384,669 855,384,669

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic loss per share have been
retrospectively adjusted to reflect the share consolidation
with effect from 2 May 2019.

The incremental shares from assumed exercise of share
options granted by the Company and conversion of the
Company’'s outstanding convertible bonds are excluded in
calculating the diluted loss per share during the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 because they are
antidilutive in calculating the diluted loss per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥R - B R % (il

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
improvement machinery ~ Computers  equipment vehicles Total
HE B
NEEE BEREE Bif HERRE RE @
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost A
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-\FNA—H 27,697 22,082 378 6,529 1,797 58,483
Additions NE 589 18 - 528 - 1,135
Written off iFic| - (100) - 471) - (571)
Currency realignment JE A% (1,789) (1,454) (25) (432) - (3,700)
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-NF=RA=+—-H
1 April 2019 RZZE-n5mA-A 26,497 20,546 353 6,154 1,797 55,347
Additions NE 438 2,083 - - - 2,521
Written off s (276) = (66) - - (342)
Currency realignment i 5 3% (1,604) (1,282) (25) (376) - (3,287)
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-FF=A=1+-H 25,055 21,347 262 5,778 1,797 54,239
Accumulated depreciation and ~ ZitTERRE
impairment
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-\ENA—H 27,566 10,670 358 6,229 1,797 46,620
Charge for the year EFEXH 175 2,088 1 196 - 2,440
Written off ki - (50) - (466) - (516)
Currency realignment TGRS (1,806) (710) (24) (409) - (2,949)
At 31 March 2018 and RZZE-AF=RA=+—-H
1 April 2019 RZE-NEFNA—-A 25,935 11,978 335 5,550 1,797 45,595
Charge for the year FETH 188 2,098 - 146 = 2,432
Written off ik (271) - (64) - - (335)
Impairment for the year ERRE - 3,806 - - - 3,806
Currency realignment TGRS (1,576) (889) (22) (343) - (2,830)
At 31 March 2020 RZZZTE=-A=1—H 24,276 16,993 249 5,353 1,797 48,668
Net book value EEFE
At 31 March 2020 RZZZFTF=A=1-8H 779 4,354 13 425 - 5,571
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NE=A=1—8 562 8,568 18 604 - 9,752

The property, plant and equipment was assessed for
impairment as part of the impairment assessment of the

goodwill (Note 18).

ME BB RRECETRIERN G LIER
BEREF AR —& D (HE18) -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EREEE

During the current year, the Group leases various offices,
cinemas and storage for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 2 to 15 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of
the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to staff quarters with lease term ends within
12 months from the date of initial application of HKFRS
16. As at 31 March 2020, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to
which the short-term lease expense disclosed in Note 10.

Variable lease payments

Leases of cinemas are either with only fixed lease
payments or contain variable lease payment that are
based on 11 to 13% net sales, which is total sales less
sales tax and charges, and minimum annual lease
payment that are fixed over the lease term. The payment
terms are common in cinemas in where the Group
operates. The amount of fixed and variable lease payments
paid/payable to relevant lessors for the year ended 31
March 2020:

RAFE AEEHREINAE Fh i
MEFEELEZR - LNEESON
B E R R2E=15F - HE R T IR E Bl
B B BN R GRR R R
FATE T 78 B K B4 1 A 48 ] HA e ) R S
AEBERBAKNKNEERLE TS KRB
HITHV R

AEESEHEERIAHRRANEHR
BRERE BN REERNFE 165 A B
12EARNERNEIEE RS _FF
—A=t—B EHHEACHREREE
X E10WE 2 R AHEEHAS B L -

AEEENRK

EXRNEHERERABREHENRKE
SER11E13% HER (AVIHE A RR
ERLERNAEHENROME 2 —
REHEHANBEENSEFEHRENRE-
NRGEREAEBREMENEZ PR
AER-BE_T-_TF=RA=+—HLt
FEEN/ENTEBEEANEE R
HEHENRER:

Number of Fixed Variable Total
cinemas payments payments payments
E¥REE B E &K CIE-ZhE (RETEEC
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET FHET
(note]
(K73)
Cinema without variable lease 8] & & {7 89
payments e 1 620 - 620
Cinemas with variable lease ERTEHEMNKEN
payments ENA 2 2,356 (214) 2,142

note: The variable payments mainly represent the over-
provision of variable lease payments in previous year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020

Bz

17.

18.

—EFF=A=+—HIFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Variable lease payments (Continued)

The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms
is that higher rental costs are incurred by cinemas with
higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected to
continue to represent a similar proportion of revenue in

future years.

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the

following amounts relating to leases:

17.

ERERE (&)
AR R ()
FERTENRGEROERHBEE A
EERANEYREELRRNRESMA -

A B & 37 TR A S A R F ARG ALY
AN =AY

HEMBHRRRINTATEBEE 2 £R:

HK$'000
FET

Restated opening net book amount under RZZE-—NFONA-—BRBEEEVHRE
HKFRS 16 as at 1 April 2019 HERIE16% 2K ES| RYBREFE 21,323
Additions NE 2,148
Depreciation charge TERX (3.831)
Impairment A (7,770)
Exchange realignment bE N =R (1,041)

Closing net book amount as at RZZB-_TF=A=+—HZHRE@

31 March 2020 F1E 10,829

The right-of-use assets were assessed for impairment as
part of the impairment assessment of the goodwill (Note

EREEECETREN G TIEREE
BER R —& D (HEE18) -

18).
GOODWILL 18. &
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Cost
At the beginning and at the end of the year ~ FHIRFXR 12,423 12,423
Accumulated impairment losses it B EBR
At the beginning and at the end of the year ~ F# R F K (11,473) (11,473)
Carrying amount FREE
At the end of the year 950 950

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. W2 (&)
The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated EE REE (KR RFHREEE)ES
impairment losses) was allocated to cash-generating units IEERSEESENG BENOT:
as follows:
2020 2019
—EZERF —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Cinema business — Cinema Group ThER — EXhiE 950 950
Part of the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Bingo Cinema @i_ === Jr HiEFE &
(Shanghai) Company Limited (“Shanghai Bingo”) together with SEEELERBREEREB I LSE

its subsidiaries (“Cinema Group”) during the year ended 31
March 2013, which was engaged in cinema business.

Impairment assessment of goodwill, related property,
plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets related
to the Cinema Group

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the subsidiaries
of Shanghai Bingo business performance was below
expectation, the management of the Group concluded
there was indication for impairment and contractual
impairment assessment on the recoverable amounts of
the related property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets with carrying amounts of HK$9,276,000 and
HK$18,422,000 respectively.

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of the
subsidiaries of Shanghai Bingo, which are considered as
individual cash-generating units ("“CGUs") to which the
assets belong. In addition, the management of the Group
estimates the recoverable amounts of the Cinema Group.
The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have been
determined on the basis of value in use.

The value in use calculations use cash flow projections
based on the latest financial budgets approved by the
management of the Company covering a 5-year period at
pre-tax discount rates ranged from 15.1% to 24.3%.
Cash flow projection during the budget period was based
on the operating costs, budgeted sales, growth rate and
gross margin during the budget period and the budgeted
sales and budgeted margin have been determined based
on past performance and management’s expectations for
the future changes in the market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. W2 (&)
Impairment assessment of goodwill, related property, TREBRARNEEHBNGE - A
plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets related BYxE BERIKBUREAEEEDN
to the Cinema Group and corporate assets WA (8)
(Continued)
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period (2019: 5-year) are HBSFHH (ZZ—NF :5F)WRER
extrapolated using a steady 2% growth rate (2019: 2%). EFARBREN2NEEE (ZZ—NF:
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth 2% - R EERNEBETENEER
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term A AT BERETEN T RPERE
growth rate for the relevant industry.
Based on the result of the assessment, the directors of BREFGER ARAEFETHSES
the Company determine that the recoverable amounts of BAHATRE S FETVERESBHERAE-
the CGUs are lower than their respective carrying BESBEIREESEI ZWE -BE &
amounts. The impairment amount has been allocated to REREAREE UBRZENEENR
each category of property, plant and equipment, and right- BT g DR E R E QS E R &R
of-use assets, such that the carrying amount of each MEGCREEMERNRSE Bt BE
category of asset is not reduced below the highest of its TR CEF=A=+—HILFE X&KH
fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. ERME BENEE EREEEREIR
Accordingly, the Group recognised an impairment loss on EF51E % 53,808,000/ 7t & 7,770,000
property, plant and equipment of HK$3,806,000, and B (ZE-NF - ZEBTREET)
right-of-use assets of HK$7,770,000 during the year 31
March 2020 (2013: HKS$Nil and HK$Nil).
19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. REIEAFINRES
2020 2019
- —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Unlisted shares 3 L5
Share of net assets DEFEE (54) (5]
Amount due from an associate (note b] & WHE & X FIFRIE (fath) 223 507
169 502
Loan to an associate (note c) m—EEERRREER (Mitc) 17,512 33,808

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The following list contains the particulars of the Group’s

19. RBIEQTMER (F)

TREBEAEREBZERRHFIE:

associate:
Praportion of ownership interest
BRERRLH
Form of Place of Particulars of Group’s
Name of business incorporation  issued and effective Held bythe  Held by Principal
associate structure and operation  paid up capital  interest Company subsidiaries  activity
A AL K BEIRAR  AEEM
Ll UNSIE iBeRrl  2EnH =2 RS ARAFE  WEBRARE TEEY
Goal Creation Incorporated  Hong Kong 100 shares of ~ 49% - 49% Investing in Virtual Reality
Game Limited RRGIZA Bk HK$1 each and Mixed Reality Project
ElmBRARAR 100 & RET REERBERERLEAER
o) EH
(a) Fair value of Investments (a) ®’EZD¥E
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s REBRRAEER NEEZHBE QA
associate is a private company and there was no RIARAT BABRE W &ET 5B
quote market price available for the investment. e
(b) Amount due from an associate (b) EWEEQTZRE
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, FEWEEE AR RIBB EER - 5
interestfree and repayable on demand. The balance BREARERER -ZERTINET
is denominated in HK$ and approximate to their fair STENREEQNTERE -
value.
(c) Loan to an associate (c) M—EBEEQIATARLER

In September 2018, the Group entered into a loan
agreement (‘2018 Loan Agreement”) with the
associate. Pursuant to 2018 Loan agreement, the
Group advanced a loan of RMB29,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$33,808,000) to the
associate for one year. On 30 September 2019, part
of the loan amounting to RMB1 3,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$14,403,000) was repaid while the remaining
loan balance amounting to RMB16,000,000
(equivalent to HK$17,512,000) was extended by
entering into another loan agreement.
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19.

—EFF=A=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(c)

19. REBELTMER (&)

Loan to an associate (Continued) (c) B—REBEATNRHERE)
On 30 September 2019, the Group entered into a RZE-—hFAA=1TH KEEH
loan agreement (‘2019 Loan Agreement’) with the BERRFTLERBE([ZE—N
associate. Pursuant to the 2013 Loan Agreement, FERmE]) *Eiﬁf?—ﬂiféﬁﬂ
the Group advanced a loan of RMB16,000,000 WE AEBEMEERAARRARKE
(equivalent to HK$17,512,000) to the associate for 16,000,000 (#HE R
three years. The associate placed the loan into a 17, 512 DOO?’%TT:) B =1F - 2
bank as time deposit for interest income. ERNRBEREFEARITIERT BT
%KJ«M%HX BN -
The loan is unsecured, bearing approximately 2.1% FZEERREER FHNEHR2.1%
(2019: 2.95%) interest rate annually, which is the (ZZ—NF:2.95%) (& 77
same interest rate as for time deposit placed in the A ERIT #) 5 HA 77 s T$ﬁ @) -
bank mentioned above, and repayable in September RIZEZZFhAEER —NEF:
2022 (2019: repayable in September 2019). RZE—NFNAEE) -
The associate would then place the loan for time ZE RN ARG ERFEART
deposit in bank. It is expected that the time deposit TEE BATE 5o TERT R & B 00 R &)
will be kept rolling in a financial institution which is THEFRRARRRRREEEER:
with high-credit-quality, the management of the Group AEBERERREFNEERR
considers that the credit risk and the corresponding REBEREEBEET TEXR.
expected credit loss of the loan were immaterial.
Summarized financial information in respect of the FRATZEBE NN BEREE
material associate is set out below. The summarized I - AT B ER B 280 &
financial information below represents amount shown NARBEEVBRESEANRR 2
in the associates’ financial statements prepared in WS MR ReE:
accordance with HKFRSs:
2020 2019
—T-2F —hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Current assets mENEE 17,625 34,308
Current liabilities mEBEE (17,735) (34,315)
Net liabilities BEFEE (110) (9)
Share of net liabilities DMRBEF (54) (5]
Revenue W g - -
Loss for the year FEEE (101) (4)
Dividend received from the associate FREUEE R RIRE
during the year = -
Cash flows from operating activities WEEE IR RE (101) (4)
Cash flows from investing activities REXEB RS RE 504 492
Cash flows from financing activities MEXB2BRERE (17,060) 33,812

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. FEUTARSR
The aging of the Group’s trade receivables based on the AEERBEZBA B BUKERFRR DN
invoice date is analysed as follows: UM
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Within 30 days 30B A - 786
31-60 days 31£60H 39 142
61-90 days 61£290H - 4
Over 90 days 90H A £ 418 48
457 980
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses i : B Hi{Z B S BB (325) (11)
132 969
For cinema business and filmed entertainment, new media MR ARBRIRE FEERAER
exploitations and licensing business segment, the credit BHEESRImME AEELKTERF
terms granted by the Group to its customers normally TEEBEH-—MBERESTWEI0E RE -
ranged from COD (cash-on-delivery) to 120 days. The 7N £2 [B) B o S EH ok Uk (O] FE Uk 3RO 4 R AR
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding Em-EREREARE TR AHEH-
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by BT A FEUWBE T HAR —F AU [ -
senior management. All trade receivables are expected to
be recovered within one year.
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are B S EYGRIEN R E B R K S -

set out in note 4.

21. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 21, HfEUHRIE « RERFEFRIE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other receivables H i fE W IR 149 332
Deposits and prepayments e RIENRIA 1,711 2,600

Monies held by a trust for share award VARG AR 2B Bh st E{E4E 77
scheme FEMER 5,000 -
6,860 2,932

Represented by: K=

Non-current assets ERENEE 657 700
Current assets MENEE 6,203 2,232
6,860 2,932
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21,

22,

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 21. H MBI HRIE - M& R B FARIE
(Continued) (#8)
As the monies held by a trust managed by a trustee which ZEFIEBHIFEABTEN —EEFEMEE
is a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures ZEXFEACRBESLAEGRIEERLS
Ordinance and is licensed to carry on the regulated HEEERAUNI AT EBNFEER
activities in connection with asset management, the AEEBEBRERR/AZSERENEERR K
management of the Group considers that the credit risk HENEREEBIBT TEKX-
and the corresponding expected credit loss of the monies
were immaterial.
DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING 22, KEEERESZRE HRE
INTERESTS/PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR EREBREAZTZRIEA
PROCUREMENT FOR INVESTMENT OF CINEMA
BUSINESS
Pursuant to the announcement for the joint venture BREBHRE_ZT——FANLBHREE
agreement (“JV agreement”) dated 9 June 2011, a & (a&H&l)NEZRE KRQF
subsidiary of the Company entered into a JV agreement — X B A & B CineChina Limited
with CineChina Limited (“CineChina”) for the investment of (ICineChina | ) L fEHF B IR & & bt £ 7155
cinema business in the PRC. aBthEe
The payments were made to CineChina and to an Ry /5% B & & % M > {7 CineChina
independent third party, for the purpose of materialising N —RBEWALE=T 25K
the JV agreement:
2020 2019
—T-2F —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Amount paid to CineChina % {4 F CineChina 2 58 2,173 2,315
Amount paid to an independent third party X F— &8 E=H 2B - 3,097
2,173 5,412
Analysed as: DR
Current mE 1,452 5,412
Non-current e EN 721 -
2,173 5,412

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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22. DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS/PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR
PROCUREMENT FOR INVESTMENT OF CINEMA
BUSINESS (Continued)

Under the prevailing legal requirements in the PRC,
certain restrictions are imposed on foreign investors for
taking up majority stake in cinema business in the PRC. In
accordance with legal opinion from PRC lawyer, the
approval for engaging in the foregoing business by the
subsidiaries of the Company has not been obtained from
the respective PRC authorities during the year ended 31
March 2012 and the organising of the above cinema
business had not been completed at 31 March 2012.
CineChina and an independent third party (collectively,
“these parties”) held the fund for the Group and would
settle the cost incurred in procurement of the investment
of cinema business in the PRC.

By an internal group reorganisation the capital of Bingo
Cinema (Shanghai) Company Limited (“Shanghai Bingo”)
was transferred from a domestic enterprise to a sino-
foreign joint venture enterprise to comply with the relevant
regulatory requirement for foreign investors to operate
cinema business in the PRC during the year ended 31
March 2013. The Group legally owned 75% equity
interests in Shanghai Bingo to operate the cinema
business by mid- February 2013. The results of the
cinema projects, including Linan and Hangzhou cinema
projects, legally owned by Shanghai Bingo are consolidated
into that of the Group after completion of the internal
group reorganisation. Pursuant to the agreement entered
into between the Group and these parties on 6 December
2012, these parties in principle agreed to act as a
conduit of payment on behalf of the Group for the
development of the cinema business in the PRC. These
parties have substantially utilised the funds for the cinema
business through their connection in the PRC.
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EEERER RS HRE
ERERBRASHAIMZREK(E)

BBRTHREERZ2RTE IEKREER
FREBAZRESABOERSZIET
PR IRIBEFEIEAMIRHERZER  HE
BT —FE=-A=+—HItFEARQT
WEBARHMARERBTEE B ERS £
mER B FighREBEcEATIERZ
ET-——F=ZA=Z+—"BHHEHERATK-
CineChina  — &% B E =7 (#iE[ZE
FOFDREEERGES UEENE
B EREE KA -

BE T =F=A=+—BLFE &
BAREEER LSEXEK (LB)AR
RE ([t LB 2EAR—FKAELE
BEE-RPIGELE LWETINER
BERTEE LT R ARG ERTE -
AEBAEEALLS LB75%MHE  AHE
CE R _ARZARETRER T
AR EEEHRER ke LB EHEEZ
EXRER (BRBRLEMMEFRERR)
LEBHEAFTARKRERE REAEHE
HZEITNANR_E—_F+=AXABA
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22. DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING 22. WBERRESZEE HKE

INTERESTS/PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR
PROCUREMENT FOR INVESTMENT OF CINEMA
BUSINESS (Continued)

The management of the Company has taken into account
the past repayment record, adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
of these parties and estimated that the expected credit
loss rate was insignificant and no expected credit loss was
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2018.

In March 2020, the amount paid to an independent third
party of approximately RMB2,656,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,920,000) was refunded, and exchange loss of
approximately HK$177,000 was recorded during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

On 25 February 2020, the Group entered into an
acquisition agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”) with
CineChina to acquire remaining 30% of the equity
interests of Bingo Cinema Investment Company Limited
(“BCIC") and Bingo Cinema Management Company Limited
(“BCMC”) at a cash consideration of HK$721,000, which
is classified as non-current. Immediately before entering
into the Acquisition Agreement, the Group recorded a
receivable balance of approximately RMB1,985,500 from
CineChina. The consideration for the Acquisition
Agreement of HK$721,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMBGB50,000) was net off against the receivable of
RMB1,985,500 from CineChina. The remaining balance
of approximately RMB1,335,500 (equivalent to
HK$1,480,000) has been collected by the Group
subsequently in April 2020, and exchange gain of
approximately HK$28,000 relating to this receivable is to
be recorded in the year ending 31 March 2021. The
management of the Group assessed that no expected
credit loss on the receivable from CineChina
RMB1,985,500 is required to be recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

ERERBRASHAIMZREK(E)

ARAREEREC EZEINTFINTB
FERLE AREFTEETLERAR
BHEREFOHREEERELFE I
[ EMEEEREX TN RBE_F
—NF=ZA=+T—"HUEFEAIEEREHR
EEBE-

RZZEZZEF=A INTRIYE=TH
HEHARE2 656,0007T (HER
2,920,000 T)BERE R_ZT_TF
AT+ —HIEFETHSELFELY
177,0007% T °

N-_ZE_ZEFE-_A-_+HA - A&EHHE
CineChina 7]z T WiE sk ([WEEaR]) -
LAEE S R E721,00008 T gtk 58 %k
REBR AR ([BCIC)RttmEERE
EAHRAT ([BCMC J ) F & B930% % #E -
HEE B AEMRE - ZEAT L IWEHZER -
7K £ [E $% 15 CineChina HY FE Uk 3k 78 45 62 4
AR #1,985,5007c W =R (E
721,000 7T (& 18 A R%650,000
7T ) 2 B CineChina 89 fE Y ;L 18 A R
1,985,500 HE - A EBEBZR T
TEFNAKMBMESROEHROARE
1,335,500t (#H & 7% 1,480,000/%
JT) - i B Ut FE U ER SR B B8 A £928,000%
TELWRER -_E-_—F=A=+—H
FtFEAR - AEEEEEFG #2-%
—EFZAZT+—HULESFE ETHER
CineChina W JEW R TEM FEBEEEE A
R#1,985,5007T °
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HeRhBe&EED
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash at banks and in hand RITNFEIBS 38,146 60,926

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on
daily bank deposit rates. The fair values of the Group's
bank balances and cash at 31 March 2020 and 2019
approximate their corresponding carrying amounts.

As at 31 March 2020, deposits and cash placed with
banks in Mainland China amounted to approximately
HK$9,478,000 (2019: HK$23,180,000). Remittance of
funds out of Mainland China is subject to relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the government of Mainland China.

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.001% to 0.3% (2019: 0.125% to 0.25%)
per annum.

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the
Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of defaults of
the counterparty banks and financial institution are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for expected
credit losses is provided.
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24,

25.

TRADE PAYABLES 24 [EFIIRRR

The aging of the Group’s trade payables based on the REERBEEEAPNENERR KRR
invoice date is analysed as follows: MaAT

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within 30 days 30B A - 899
31-60 days 31260H 307 2
61-90 days 61290H - 3
Over 90 days 90H M £ 40 5
347 909

Payment terms with suppliers are generally within 30
days.

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

R 2 MR — AR /R30H AR -

ETREAEE FHtEMERINEREE

WRREAFERERE-

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES AND 25. EriRe v HtEFARRRE
ACCRUALS AR
2020 2019
i —EFNF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Other payables and accruals (note 1) Hfh e~ R IR K R FRIE
(Krat1) 3,342 2,969
notes: K&t -
1. Included in the amount mainly represents an auditor’'s

remuneration of approximately HK$800,000 (2019:
HK$800,000).

2.  All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

1. SHEBEZEAE$4800,000/% T (=
Z— 1% : 800,000/ 7T ) °

2. MAEHMENFELEFERESBR
—FREBRREREE -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Bz

—EFF=A=+—HIFE

26. CONTRACTS LIABILITIES

26. S¥AaE

2020 2019
—T-2F —T-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
As at 1 April ROUA—AH 7,756 8,523
Revenue recognised during the year in FAEREREEANEE
relation to carried-forward contract B ik =
liabilities (4,094) (4.842)
Receipt in advance from customers FAWERE P #R
for the year 4,220 4,637
Currency realignment ME 55 2 477) (562)
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 7,405 7,756
Cinema investment and management EhRERERE
The balance was a prepaid amount in the membership ERAEPREERMNEBENNREBE-BEP

card by the customers. The balance will be recognized as
income when the customers buy the movies tickets, and
the corresponding movie was broadcasted, and snacks by
utilizing the prepaid amount in the membership card.

The timing of the transfer of the movies tickets and
snacks are at the discretion of the customers and the
management considers that the contract liabilities would
not have significant financing component.

All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled within
the Group’s normal operating cycle in respect of cinema
investment and management segment and the whole
balances are classified as current.

No revenue was recognized in the current year relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

27. HEA®R

HEVBARRIIIUATEREE 225 :

HK$'000
FHET
Restated opening net book amount under RZZE-NFHA-BARBEEEVKRSE
HKFRS 16 as at 1 April 2019: ERFEN169 < L =Y HAWRMEFE: 20,517
Additions nE 2,148
Repayment EE (3,626)
Interest expenses FERX 718
Rent concession HeE=E (480)
Exchange realignment MEHER (1,183)
Closing net book amount as at 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF=A=+—HZHK
REFE 18,114
2020
ZEIEHF
HK$’'000
THET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEE:
Within one year —F R 3,877
Within a period of more than one year but not ~ —®F L _E{ENBBARF
more than two years 3,405
Within a period of more than two years but MEEA LETBARF
not more than five years 7,383
Within a period of more than five years AFNRE 3,449
18,114
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 B 12@ AR BHNRBAE
months shown under current liabilities (3,877)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 128 A& B HWERBAE
shown under non-current liabilities 14,237

All lease obligations are denominated in the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities.

WA

PEREAEDARBEREERENES

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 22 February 2010, the Company entered into the
service agreement with Mr. Chiau whereby the Company
appointed Mr. Chiau as an executive director of the
Company and Mr. Chiau accepted the appointment with
prescribed duties for an initial term of five year from 1
June 2010. In consideration of the performance by Mr.
Chiau of his duties for the Company, the Company shall,
as a remuneration package to issue the convertible bonds
to Mr. Chiau with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$45 million and outstanding amount as at 31 March
2020 was HK$30 million (2019: HK$30 million). Details
are described in Note 34.

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability
and equity components. The fair value of the liability
component, which was determined by independent
professional valuers, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited on
the date of issue, is the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate of 16.73% and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms,
but without the conversion option. The residual amount is
assigned as the equity component and is included in
equity.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
was given an undertaking by Mr. Chiau which the maturity
date of original convertible bonds, namely Tranche 2, 3, 4
and 5, was extended to 31 May 2022, 31 May 2023,
31 May 2024 and 31 May 2025 respectively. During the
year ended 31 March 2020, no convertible bonds were
converted into shares.

According to HKFRS 9, there is a significant modification
on the financial liabilities. The modification of terms of the
convertible bonds between the Group and holder of
convertible bonds was considered as a substantial
modification and therefore the original convertible bonds
were extinguished and the new convertible bonds were
recognized on the date of modification.
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AR RS

RZE—ZEF_A_+_H AQFHF
EEFVRG HE B AAREZERL
ERANBNITES MALEREBRE
BEBEXZE VS EHE-_ZE—ZF X
A—HRFABHAF EABALEERER
ABITERECRE ARAAERALE
317K 4 4858 A45,000,000/% T 2 7] #
BEAEAFHEAEG MRS _TF=
A=+—H#/KEE$ T A30,000,000
B (ZZF— 1% :30,000,000% 1) °
FEIBE A 5E34 -
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 28. "IRERMES ()
BED 2 AFE(RBLEEMBEMD
BRHEARAREE) REEAY REH
FEEARKRERERERNE15.91%
FHRMRE - WARREIIREAZAER
Beng WRAHBREEE -BRBEIER

The fair value of the liability component which was
determined by independent professional valuers Sino-
Infinite Appraisal Limited on the date of change, is the
present value of the contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate

of 15.91% and providing substantially the same cash EamEby Wit A=A
flows, on the same terms, but without the conversion
option. The residual amount is assigned as the equity
component and is included in equity.
The movement of the liability component and equity FA-ARBREFAES S RERLO 2
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set out BEENMT
below:
Liability Equity
Component Component
=N g:15%) =i
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
At 1 April 2018 RZZFE-N\FUHA—H 20,783 76,520
Imputed interest charged EETHEERE 3,835 -
At 31 March 2019 —NWF=A=+—H” 24,618 76,520
Imputed interest charged EEHEER S 4,547 -
Extinguishment upon extension of TEHART R IR EH 1B EE
convertible bonds (19,418) (51,012)
Recognition upon extension of convertible JE B AT AR (B 5 12 FE R
bonds 11,793 40
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-ZF=A=+—H 21,540 25,548
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Mature within 1 year —F A E| 9,747 -
Mature later than 1 year —F1& 2 11,793 24,618
21,540 24,618

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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29. SHARE CAPITAL

29. B&%&

As at 31 March 2020
R-ZZE-EH5=A=+—-H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB RN

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

As at 31 March 2019
RZE-NF=R=+—H

Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
R#HEE AfE B2 E [EED
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T TET T TET
Authorised: ERE
At the beginning of the year, ordinary ~ REH) - SREEC.04%E T
shares of HK$0.04 each B L @R 5,000,000 200,000 5,000,000 200,000
Share consolidation [note 1) BB (MaE1) (3,750,000) = - -
Share subdivision (note 1) BOYRE (fE1) 18,750,000 = - -
At the end of the year, ordinary shares P& & B EEC.01/ET
of HK$0.01 (2019: HK$0.04) each (ZZ—NF:00457T)
)L B 20,000,000 200,000 5,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At the beginning of the year, ordinary ~ RFH) - SREEO.047% T
shares of HK$0.04 each B L @R 3,421,539 136,861 3,421,539 136,861
Share consolidation [note 1) WA (1) (2,566,154) = - -
Capital reduction (note 1] B (f1F1) - (128,307) - -
At the end of the year, ordinary shares P& & B EEC.01/ET
of HK$0.01 (2019: HK$0.04) each (ZZ—NF:00457T)
)L B 855,385 8,554 3,421,539 136,861
note 1: MW -

On 2 May 2019, the Company completed a capital reorganisation
(the “Capital Reorganisation”) involving the share consolidation,
the capital reduction and the share subdivision. The Capital
Reorganisation was approved at the extraordinary general

meeting held on 12 February 2018. Details of which are as

follows:

() SHARE CONSOLIDATION

m

The Company implemented a share consolidation on the
basis that every four existing shares of HK$0.04 of the
Company combined into one consolidated share of
HK$0.16 effective on 2 May 2013;
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 29. BR*E (&)
note 1: (Continued) KieE1 - (48)
() CAPITAL REDUCTION (mn EXRERE
This involves the reduction of the nominal value of each H-ZT-NFREAZAE BEREETE
issued consolidated share from HK$0.16 to HK$0.01 A% 1D W E{E B0.1675 70R 2 £0.017%
effective on 2 May 2013; and TT K
(i) SHARE SUBDIVISION () KR
Immediately following the Capital Reduction, each of the EREARERE RE-AFRAAZRE
authorised but unissued consolidated share of nominal AR EEO. 168 T KA BB AR EAT
value of HK$0.16 each will be subdivided into sixteen new & PR R 2160 B R0.01E T
shares of HK$0.01 each effective on 2 May 2019. BT o
* Details of the Capital Reorganisation are stated in the * RAARRBER-_Z—NAEFE—-HA—<H
Company’s circular dated 16 January 2013. BB R T EAEHENFMAES -
Share award scheme % 43 22 B et &l
The board of directors of the Company approved the RAREFSIERN—BRD ZET 2
adoption of a share award scheme (the “Share Award ([ REEE]) BT —NAFNA
Scheme”) with effect from 14 August 2013 (the “Adoption T B ([ER& B H )R AR Ik =R
Date”). The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to (i) ENRERNZERERNETAERSHE
recognise and reward the contributions by certain eligible EELHOER L4 TRE) BB B RS
participants and to give incentives thereto in order to BBEBRAEERBELERERY N Ki)
retain them for the continual operation and development WaliEa ANBRE—SHBAERRERE-
of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for BRIEEEGRFBRATK L B RIRMD ZE
further development of the Group. Unless otherwise early REARMEBEOFHRMAE MR E
terminated by the resolution of the board, the Share o

Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Adoption Date.

The Share Award Scheme is operated through a trustee B BENTEE B — BB IINAEENT
which is independent of the Group. The shares to be FEANEE - RBAR D REET 2 BB AR
awarded under the Share Award Scheme will be (i) issued 1% (1) AT 3T AR 80 75 X847 0 ] "3 (i) BB
by way of new issue of shares; and/or (i) acquired by the ZREATEWEIARR AN BARIERERA
trustee from the open market after the notification and Fmis EEA-XEABELRRR D #T
instruction by the Company. The trustee shall not hold RO EE T EEIRI10% o

more than 10% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company.

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

During the year, on 16 August 2019 and 14 October
2019, the Company granted an aggregate of
12,790,000 awarded shares to two executive directors,
namely Mr. Chiau and Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, and
29,860,000 awarded shares (collectively referred to as
the “Awarded Shares”) to other employees and advisors of
the Group (collectively referred to as the “Selected
Participants”). Subject to the acceptance of the Selected
Participants and that the Selected Participants remain as
employees and advisors of the Group on the vesting date
of the Awarded Shares, the Awarded Shares shall vest in
them on 15 August 2020, 13 October 2020 and 13
October 2021, at which time the Awarded Shares were
transferred to the Selected Participants at nil
consideration.

During the year, the Company did not repurchase any
shares of the Company through the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme from the open market. The Awarded
Shares that are vested were recorded in share award
scheme account of the Group. The Group recognised a
share award expense of HK$1,720,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2020 in respect of the Awarded Shares
granted in the current year. As at 31 March 2020, no
shares were held through the trustee of the Share Award
Scheme.

Share options scheme
Details of the Company’'s share option schemes and the

share options granted under the share option schemes
are included in Note 31 to the financial statements.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 29. B&=& (/&)

Capital management

Capital comprises of share capital and reserves stated on
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
owners of the Company and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher
owners’ returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Group maintains its net asset position.

As at the year ended, interest bearing debt and total cash
balances are approximately HK$21,540,000 (2019:
HK$24,618,000) and HK$38,146,000 (20189:
HK$60,926,000) respectively. As the total cash amounts
are higher than the interest bearing debt amounts, the
net debt-to-equity ratio is not applicable.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirement.

X EE

BABREAMBIRRABRR AT 2 BA
Li#Ew - AEEEREEAZBEERBRIR
EASEEMEBRITBELEEELS
1< A& B3R B IR E oK T 18 e b A E
MR RGEEBURAGERAREHEE
B EBRARAHEATRERL A
s i B A oA et o

AEBTEHRIMNERELEARE KK
ERSHEA ALQ R (A8 RE S E &K
) B R AT E AR T R 2 4T B K AR R
EZHBS TS THABRKHERE 221
HEBEEARB - BE_T_TF=A
St-RULEFE ARERBEEEFE
AR

RER FEEBRACHEREED RN
/21,540,000 T (ZZE— N F:
24,618,000/% 7t ) }238,146,000/% 7t
(ZZ— N4 :60,926,000% 7T) ° HRN
ReEansttEef FEEER
LE R AEA

mf}

NSRS O = PASIBS R
ZERIRERSI
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30. RESERVES 30. fEfE
The Company PN
Equity
companent of Share  Share award
Share  Contributed  convertible options scheme  Accumulated
premium surplus honds reserve reserve losses Total
TaRES BUELRE |
Rtk BARS  ZBERS  BRERE fit ZiTEE Eh
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TERL TEL TEL TERL TEL TEn TEn
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\E0A-A 420,810 1,988 76,520 99,685 - (643,040) (44,037)
Equity settled share option B EERRER S
arrangement - - - 2,181 - - 2,181
Lapse of share options BIRELH - - - (48,844) - 48844 -
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - - - (41,641) (41,641)
At 31 March 2019 RZF-NE=A=T-A 420,810 1,988 76,520 53,022 - (635837 (83,497)
At 1 April 2019 S-NERA-H 420,810 1,988 76,520 53,022 - (635837) (83,497)
Extinguishment upon extension Hﬂ?ﬁ hEHRINER
of convertible bonds - - (51,012) - - 58,597 7,585
Recognition upon extension of EHATARES (&R
canvertible bonds - - 40 - - - 40
Lapse of share options BREXT - = = (42,756) - 42,756 =
Equity settled share award ~ LIEREE 7R KRBT H
arrangement - - - - 1,720 - 1,720
Capital reduction 2y )l - 128,307 - - - - 128,307
Loss for the year AEEER = = = = - (49,411) (49,411)
At 31 March 2020 RZFZBE=A=T-A 420,810 130,295 25,548 10,266 1,720  (583,895) 4,744

At 31 March 2020, no reserves is available for
distribution to owners of the Company (2019: Nil).

The share premium is arising from the issue of shares of

the Company.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company at the time of the Group

reorganisation.
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31.

—EFF=A=+—HIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors,
eligible employees and participants who have contributed
to the Group and will expire on 14 August 2022. Under
the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to certain employees of the Group and any
distributor, contractor, business partner, promoter, service
provider, customer, supplier, consultants, agents and
advisers or any person who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group in
recognition of their contribution to the Group.

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the maximum number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued annually upon
the exercise of all options which initially shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme and thereafter, if
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
(“Scheme Mandate Limit") as at the date of approval of
the refreshed limit by the Shareholders. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the number of Shares to be issued upon
the exercise of all the Options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and other share option
schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the share option scheme
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in
aggregate within any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without
prior approval from the Company's shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors or any of his, her or its associates in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of offer
of the option exceeding the higher of O0.1% of the
Company's shares in issue and with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

31.

MRz Rt &

BER-_Z-——F N \ATHHBBZRE
R EHEVBEF FEBEENRERAR
BEHERz28E AEERAEBKR
BErE (TZat8l)) ARAEsR =%
—ZHEN\ATOARER- RIEZFE - AR
AEFGARAKEE TEENREASD
HE ABRE EBBH BEA REH
R EP HER FAA RERER
HEFEERBBERAREG/AAEER/AN
SEFELERZEMATREBEERE A
RERER/AEBEELER -

RIZGEM EM AR R - R PT B BB A 1T (£
Al gE B FRCHE RBITZ RO BB LR
SHATSEBRMAZAEERE BT
D 10% - fisd £ 1& B P E 37 B TSR B AX
RtEEHREE H D EHTRN10% ([FF
ERERRE]) -EBE XA BFAR
RRXET 8 R E b BB A AR B B M R TT
2 BRBEETEMS TRITZRNEAE
BHNEBB IR 2B BTRMI0% 1R
R AR 8 2 RN E KRR Z B T
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance
of the share option to such date as determined by the
board of directors of the Company and the exercise price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Details of specific categories of options and the fair value
of options are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the share options granted under the Schemes
and any other schemes and movements in such holdings
during the year were as follow:

31.

RERRiEEHE ()

BRHzBREGERRL ASE218
N AEOBEREIMNIBTRER - BR
BUREZEMABEREEAEEARARARESE
BTBMBYABETE BITEES
FEEROARFRONE L B # 2 m
& (i ARF DN EZRE L B A A (E
LEAZFHWRHER()ARF RN
HE=&FFZ&RE-

BRI ER RBREAFEZFEH
KR & M IEHmRMEEI4

TR ZEFEREAEMEERTRE
ZERENREZEFHFEMT

Number of shares issuable under options held

BEMSBRETFRITZROEE
Adjusted balance
upon Capital
Balance at Reorganisation
1 April Lapsed before and balance at
Share 2019 Capital Adjustment 31 March 2020
option type  W=Z—NLF Reorganisation (nate 1) R-E-ZF
Category i M e mA—H EREHA A =HA=+-A8
85 BE ZREER R¥ (K1) ZREER
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Tk TR TR Tk
Directors s 2014A 12,000 (12,000) - -
2015A 20,000 - (15,000) 5,000
2016A 42,000 - (31,500) 10,500
2017A 34,000 - (25,500) 8,500
2018A 30,000 - (22,500) 7,500
Employees EE 2018A 60,000 - (45,000) 15,000
Advisors G 2014A 273,800 (273,800) = =
2015A 4,000 - (3,000) 1,000
2016A 6,000 - (4,500) 1,500
2018A 90,000 - (67,500) 22,500
571,800 (285,800) (214,500) 71,500

note 1: Adjustment for Capital Reorganisation effective from
2 May 2018.
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. MEERMERtE (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the HEZTE-—NF=-A=-+—HLEFE #Z
Schemes and any other schemes during the year ended Eit B RAEMEGF EIE T ARITR 2B
31 March 2018: MR -
Number of shares issuable under options held
RBFSBRER T EITZRHEA
Balance at Balance at
Share 1 April 31 March
option 2018 2019
type RZZT—N\F RZE—NF
Category B MA—H Granted Lapsed =—A=+—H
Lyl TEAR 2 kR B BERM o4
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F % Fhix T Tk
Directors 2 2014A 15,000 - (3,000) 12,000
2015A 23,000 - (3,000) 20,000
2016A 45,000 - (3,000) 42,000
2017A 34,000 - - 34,000
2018A - 30,000 - 30,000
Employees BB 2018A - 60,000 - 60,000
Advisors EE 2014A 277,140 - (3,340) 273,800
2015A 132,000 - (128,000) 4,000
20158 50,000 - (50,000 -
2016A 294,000 - (288,000) 6,000
2017A 125,000 - (125,000) -
2018A - 90,000 - 90,000
995,140 180,000 (603,340) 571,800
The Company has not granted any share options for the KRB E T -_TF=-_HA=+—HIt
year ended 31 March 2020. FELERHBRE-
The Company has granted share options and recognised HE-_Z-NF=A=1+—HILFE K
an expense as share-based payments for the year ended NEE R RN MR R PARR (D /R B
31 March 2019 with an amount of HK$2,181,000. K% H&2,181,000/ 7T °
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32.

33.

FFE=ZA=1—HIFE

COMMITMENTS 32. ik

Operating lease commitments — The Group as lessee REBHAE — xEBEERFEBEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIEBR REERDE 2 TR HEL
commitments for future minimum lease payments under SHNET 2 REKEHEE N FORERE
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties HERZH T :

which fall due as follows:

2019

—NEF

HK$'000

FHET

Within one year —F R 3,562
In the second to fifth year, inclusive E_FEELF (BEEEMF) 14,078
More than five years HRiE T F 7,175
24,815

The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEBREBELERAVHEZEME-AY
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to fifteen MR R2E1SF - NEm A HEARE
years, with an option to renew the lease and renegotiated EERABREEETERREABERELHRE

the terms at the expiry date as mutually agreed between EREEE
the Group and respective landlords.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 33. AEATRRAERS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these MBZESE M‘k#&%ﬁm*ﬁ DRI EE 2 4
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into BN REBCETTIERBEALR
the following material related party and connected E%@x%o
transactions.
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEBEASHMH
Remuneration for key management personnel, FTEEBAE ZHM (BEM 10T
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors WEINFARARESZHIB)INT
as disclosed in Note 10 is as follows:
2020 2019
—E-ERF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Directors’ fee, salaries, allowances B0 e MR
and other benefits EmEF 754 842
Share-based payments VARS D B EHE 2 5k 787 576
1,541 1,418
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33. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration
(Continued)

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. A
substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability or a part of it (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the Group) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when
such difference is less than 10 per cent.

When the contractual terms of a convertible
instrument are modified, the revised terms would
result in a substantial modification from the original
terms, after taking into account all relevant facts and

33. MEALRMERXS (/H)
(a) TEEEASHM ()

AEEARAYHEEE
B HERERMBEREN

NS
f1ERH

MBRENERBERATR -HIRA

s aERE &0 &K

GO N

K (EwmetRARANEENT KR

HOWESRAMBERED
MR ENER -

Ak R #

AEERS MRFMGFETREDR

MITIRIRE (BREINGRER

REFF

RIRAMF R EANENEA)

HEMHKABERGBRER

H AT IR IR

BELAEIONNER  AIFEEKRE

RE-HIt EREKIAN

BB AR

REOERRBERRILE-EERPR
10%05 - R\SIAE WX R BIEEKXE

2K e

EEWMAIRR T ANE OGRRE &

BRIFMANRBEE RSN (
DK SECHIRE 300t 37451

BIEEE
B R

KIGREEE B & F B Al

circumstances including qualitative factors, such AR FHEZERcHEBENMERE
modification is accounted for as derecognition of the Femad
original financial liability and the recognition of new
financial liability.
Connected transactions (b) BAERZH
2020 2019

—B-2HF —E-NF
Name of connected parties  Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BMEALTER REME FET FHET
Goal Creation Game Limited Interest Income from loan to an 504 492

associate (Note 19)
M — [ & A R EE R B A

Bl EBAR AT
(K1i£19)
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33. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

33. MEALRBAERS (&)

(Continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with connected parties (c) EHEEA+TZRSEEE
2020 2019
—B-8FE —T ¥
Name of connected parties  Nature of transactions HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEALER REME THET THETT
CineChina Limited Receivable of the Group for payment 1,452 2,315
(note 1) (K1zE1) for procurement for investment
of Cinema Business
REBE IR E b 72 (R
FEJ‘BZZW\
Deposit for acquisition of non- 721 -

note 1:

controlling interests

W SRR et 2 2 S

CineChina Limited holds 30% equity interest in

subsidiaries of the Company and it is considered a
connected party under the GEM Listing Rules. The

details

of the connected transaction is listed in

Note 22.

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has the convertible bonds and share option
scheme for directors, employees and advisors of the

Group. Details of th
are as follows:

Convertible bonds

Issuer:
Principal amount:

Issue date:

Maturity date:

Interest:

Conversion price:
(note)

Issuer:
Principal amount:

Issue date:

Interest:

Conversion price:
(note)

e convertible bonds and share options

The Company

HK$45 million in aggregate on issue
date and the outstanding amount as
at 31 March 2020 was HK$10
million (2019: HK$30 million)

1 June 2010

Ten years from the date of issue
Zero coupon

HK$0.544 per share

The Company

HK$20 million in aggregate on issue
date and the outstanding amount as
at 31 March 2020 was HK$20
million

31 March 2020

Zero coupon

HK$0.544 per share

note: Conversion price was adjusted due to a share consolidation
on 2 May 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2019/20

HiFET -

CineChina_Limited BFAARR A
B /8 A 5130% 2 #2518
GEMJ:FH%EH‘JIETZF’ﬁ@/\j:

AR B

BER 5 2 B E N2

4. LEBRCBERZGR

ARBIBAEBRES - EEMEBREME

BRESRERESE AT RBRES LB

fatE 2 BT

R ES

EITA YIN/NE]|

NG RETBHH®MALREE
45,000,000/% 7t ' i 7
—E-EF=Z/=+—H
%A 42{810,000,000%
T (Z T — h F
30,000,000% 7t ) 1y 7]
] E

H{THER: —E—FEF,A—H

Ep-Eh=. BT H B TF

B T8

HRAE Fix0.5447% T

(Kiat)

EITA iN/NE]|

PN MR E1T B B A £2,0008
BT RZE_TF=H
—t+—HMREESEAR
2,000& /% T

BHITHHE: —E-EF=ZA=+—H

B S

BEAG(E BR0.5447% T

(Kiaz)
Kt : BR-ZE-NAFERA-BETRGBAH
it s mED FE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2020
BE—FT-_FTF=-A=-+—HIFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Share Option Scheme Rl

Details of specific categories of options are as follow:

The fair value of share options which were calculated
by binomial option pricing model with the following

34. LI BEREZIR(GE)

FrERRIBBERIBOT :

ER-—EABREEERAFE ZBRE
NFETIERATRR:

assumptions:

Option type: BRERR: 2015A 20158 2016A 2017A 2018A

Grant date: RHAH: 1372015 11-92015 7-7-2016 332017 17-92018

—Z-1f —Z-1f I NS “3-t% —E-0\E

tA+=H NA+—H tAtA =A=AH MATEA

Number of options granted: & {HEEfREZE : 161,000,000 50,000,000 342,000,000 159,000,000 180,000,000

Exercise period: 16 8: 13-7-2015- 11-8-2015- 7-7-2016- 3-3-2017- 17-9-2018-

12-7-2020 10-9-2020 6-7-2021 2-3-2022 16-9-2023

ZZ-RF 0% ZERE —E-N\§ ZZ-N\F

tA+=ZHZE nAT—AZ tAtRZ =A=RZE MATERZE

e 2 e 2 “E--F S I 2

tAtzH NA+A tARA -AZA MATRA

Exercise price: TRE: HK$0.2357% T HK$0.200/ T HK$0.180/ T HK$0.135/ T HK$0.042i T

Adjusted exercise BEIHER: HK$0.940% - HK$0.720% 7t HK$0.540% 7t HK$0.168% 1t

price: (note) (Hi:t)

Fair value: ATE: HK$6,800,000 HK$4,800,000  HK$26,600,000 HK$8,640,000 HK$2,181,000

AT AT AT AT
Option type: BRI 2018A
Share price as at grant date: REEE B2 RE: HK$0.042%5 7T
Nature of the options: Bl ZILE: Call 3 f#
Risk-free rate: A = o ) 2 2.277%
Expected life of the options: MRt 2 TR AR R - 5 years F
Expected volatility: T8 HA R - B63%
Expected dividend yield: TE HRAR B s 2 0%
Exercise multiple: TS 2.91-2.97

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility
of the Company’s share prices. Expected dividends were
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The closing price of the shares of the Company on the date
of the options granted (i.e. 17 September 2018]) is
HK$0.042.

note: The exercise price was adjusted due to the share
consolidation on 2 May 20189.

T8 HRE T AR R R A (B 18 2 3B 1 K &)
REE-FFHRENBERESEE -TH
BWABBRRINEES ARG AT
BEBEREATE-

RELEREZR (M- N\FLA
THER) AR F G H UK T ER0.042
BITe

B AR pEH TEERERZZ—NF
AAZHARE
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. EXEMBLTZHFE
Particulars regarding the subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 WN_E-_EFZA=+—HB WEQAAZ
are as follows: ESR NN
Place of Issued and Attributable
incorporation/ fully paid equity interests
operation Type of share capital  held by the Company  Principal
Name of subsidiaries SMAL/ legal entity BRITR AAREEZREAER  activities
WEARARE =S EEERES BRRE Directly Indirectly —EZX#H
H# i
% %
Art Aim Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$1 - 100 Mavie
HEERNA BE company 1% production
BREAERAF YR
Billion Success Corporation Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Licensing
Limited BB company 1T business
ERBRAT BREERAF BHERD
Bingo Cinema Investment Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 70 Cinema
Company Limited BB company 10,000% 7t investment
HREYRREBRAF BREERH FhRERE
Bingo Cinema Management Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 70 Cinema
Company Limited £ company 10,000% 7t management
HREXREBERAA AREERR ThER
Bingo Management Services ~ Hong Kang Limited liability HK$1 100 - Management
Limited BB company 1T services
KREERBERAF BREERR EIRR%
Bingo Movie Development Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Movie
Limited BB company 1B production
HEEFERERAR BREARTF YR
Brillant Tech Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$1 - 70  Cinema
o1 NG 0 company 18T management
AREERR ThER
Easybuild Assets BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Investment
Management Limited BERIES company (E holding
SREEEBARNT BREERR REER
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. EEMBLTZHE (&)

(Continued)
Place of Issued and Attributable
incorporation/ fully paid equity interests
operation Type of share capital  held by the Company  Principal
Name of subsidiaries HEMKL legal entity BRITR AARELEZREESR activities
MEARERE EEMH EEERESR BERA  Directly Indirectly FEXH
E# Cik:
% %
Emcom (HK) Pte Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 100 - Investment
RSB (F8)BERAA BE company 1087 holding
BREERT REER
Huge Art Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Cartoon
ZBERRA EE company BT production
BREERT T@SUE
Lofty Gain Investments BVI Limited liability Us$1 100 - Movie
Limited RERTEE company 1% production
HREREBRAF BREERAF EYAE
Lofty Shine Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Investment
BEBRAA EBRUEE company (Ep holding
BREERT REER
Shanghai Caike Cinema PRC Limited liability US$100,000 - 70 Cinema
Management and H company 100,000% T management
Consultancy Limited. * (e BAREELNR FhER
TERMEREREHA
BRAT w1
Huichi (Shanghai) Consultancy ~ PRC Limited liability US$500,000 - 70 Cinema
Limited* (o h company 500,000% T investment
B (L8 RERM BREERT FhHERE
BRAF Hen)
Shanghai Huichi Management ~ PRC Limited liability ~ RMB100,000 - 70  Cinema
and Consultancy Co., Ltd.* company ARK investment
LEERERERNBRAR BREARTF 100,0007t FhiRE
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) PRC Limited liability RMB6,000,000 - 52.5  Cinema business
Company Limited * H company ARE A
teEFkR(LE)FRAR BREEAF 6,000,0007¢

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

35. FEMBLTIZER (B)

(Continued)
Place of Issued and Attributable
incorporation/ fully paid equity interests
operation Type of share capital  held by the Company  Principal
Name of subsidiaries EMAYL/ legal entity BRITR AARELEZREAER  activities
WEAREE EEHY EEERER HERA  Directly Indirectly FEEX
E# Eik
% %

Hangzhou Linan Bingo Cinema  PRC Limited liability ~ RMB500,000 - 52.5 Cinema business
Company Limited (formerly company AR FhRER
knows as Linan Bingo BREERR 500,000 ©
Cinema Company Limited)*

mMEZLREYRERAF
(FIBRZteEYR
BRRA)

Hangzhou Bingo Cinema PRC Limited liability ~ RMB500,000 - 52.5  Cinema business
Company Limited* H company ARE FhRER

MM REZRARRA BEREAEAH 500,000 7

* English name for identification purpose only * BN AR

note: Hat

1. Wholly owned foreign enterprises (WOFE) registered under 1. WBEBEHREEEZLZZIEGEEDRE-

PRC law.

The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling

interests:

Place of
incorporation and
principal place

TRINTEBEAFERERZAKEEEE
fIE RIS

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting

rights held by

of business non-controlling interests  (Loss)/Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary HMALEEE  FEREREEZEEEER  noncontrolling interests  non-controlling interests
WEAR R TEEENY RRFRELH FERERELN (FB) /87 Rt ERESR
2020 2018 2020 2019 2020 2018
SBI2E  “T-N\F  ZBIEE  -"T-AF  ZBSBE CTNf
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TARL TARL TAL
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) feEFR (L) PRC 47.5% 47.5% (12,763) 469 2,653 16,135
Company Limited ARAR
Individually immaterial subsidiaries ?ﬁﬁ? ) EmZ G (6,590) (6,279)
with non-contraling interests ERIFEARBLA
(3,937) 9,856

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35.

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarized financial information below

FEMB LT ZERE (E)

TRENEAARERFFERER AL
EHBARcMBERBE - TEMBE
M ZEEBAKE ARFRYHENZ 28 -

represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.

2020 2019
—T-2F —T-NF
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company EEk (E8) HKS$’000 HK$'000
Limited AR AT THET FHET
Non-current assets EMENEE 16,385 9,704
Current assets mENE E 15,606 34,036
Current liabilities ER=Ni (12,671) (9,771)
Non-current liability EmBAEE (13,735) -
Revenue & 22,616 38,048
2020 2019
—ECEHF —T-NF
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company EEk (E8) HK$'000 HK$'000
Limited BRAA] FTET FAT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to AT EEAFE (B18) a5
- owners of the Company — RRRHEAB A (1,418) 519
- non-controlling interest — IR (1,282) 469
Total comprehensive income/(loss), AT E A 2R A
attributable to: (E18) s
- owners of the Company — ARRFHEBA 2,147 (947)
- non-controlling interest — FEERE 1,941 (858)
Net cash (used in)/generated from wEEe (FTR) sz
operating activities RE 5 (10,139) 875
Net cash used in investing activities KERBFFACRSFE (2,097) (1,135)
Net cash used in financing activities METHAZRE R (4,238) -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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36. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

ANNUAL
2019/20

On 25 February 2020, the Group entered into an
acquisition agreement with CineChina to acquire the
remaining 30% of the equity interests of BCIC and
BCMC, companies that are incorporated in Hong
Kong at a cash consideration of HK$721,000. The
transaction was completed on 29 April 2020.
Details of the acquisition are stated in the Company's
announcements dated 25 February 2020 and 27
April 2020, and its circular dated 29 April 2020.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 in PRC and the
subsequent quarantine measures imposed by the
Chinese government in early 2020 have had a
severe negative impact on the operations of the
Group since January 2020, as all of the Group's
cinemas are located in PRC. The Group had closed
its cinemas since January 2020 due to mandatory
government quarantine measures in an effort to
contain the spread of the epidemic. In addition, as
substantially all of the Group’s subsidiaries and
operations are located in PRC, the outbreak of the
COVID-19 is expected to have a negative impact on
these entities. This may in turn negatively affect the
recoverability of Group’'s assets recorded in these
subsidiaries, which are subject to impairment
assessments as appropriate.

As the situation remains fluid as at the date these
financial statements are authorised for issue, the
directors of the Company considered that the
financial effects of the COVID-19 on the Group's
consolidated financial statements cannot be
reasonably estimated. Nevertheless, the COVID-19
outbreak is expected to materially affect the
consolidated results of the Group for the first half
and full year ending 31 March 2021, e.g.
impairment of goodwill, property, plant and
equipment, and right-of-use assets.

REPORT &3

36. HENERER

(a)

(b)

RZE-_FEF_A-+HH ~EHE
B3 CineChina 5] 37 7 W g 5 LATR
R E721, OOO/%EHH%BCIC&
BCMC FI 62 8030% X #E - 5% 1B 52
RZZEZFEFMNAZFTNLEAREK W
BEBREARABHA T -_ZF
A tEHE-_Z-_ZTFMNA
Tt+EtEMRAEURERRH AT
ZEFMA T EHBB R R -

FR B A TR R B R B DA KRR BB
HEetE T _ZTFEBNRER
B AEBR T _TF—HMUK
NEEELETHRENBETZE AR
AEBEWMBEZRANFE AR
AT B B 52 1) B B 45 e DA 3B 1) &
BEERE AXEEEBEE T -FF—A
RS EFRER N AR EE
BB AR M EBET 2 AT -
AEGtERTERsRBEYHELSE
BELBEXZEZ: RBK BT
SHASELZEMNBE R TEuE@E
Zﬁ?ZTHﬂZ@lEFEE@wE
ART B REITRERE -

HREBEEAMBRIELENE 2B
ERDABREE REARBES
RRHUNAEEHIEREREY
AEBZEAMBRRMELHNY
BEE-RAM BHRHERSRES
HAKEBZE T -_—F=A=+—
Bt E+FRE2FONGEEEEEL
EXFE UEE DX -BER
EERERAEEERE-
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

37. ERFIMBFRARE

COMPANY
2020 2019
—BR-BF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSET RBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NIV NE s 162,587 217,179
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hith e IE - i e &
prepayments TafRIE 5,155 147
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBFEFEY 15,668 9,842
20,823 9,989
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Other payables and accruals H fth JE AT 5018 R FE T R IE 1,180 1,778
Amounts due to subsidiaries NIV ENGIE /& 147,392 147,408
Convertible bonds AR ES 9,747 -
158,319 149,186
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEEFE (137,496) (139,197)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERABES
LIABILITIES 25,091 77,982
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBAEE
Convertible bonds AR (& 25 11,793 24,618
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 13,298 53,364
CAPITAL AND RESERVES % A K 17 4
Share capital [N 8,554 136,861
Reserves % 4,744 (83,497)
TOTAL EQUITY REHEE 13,298 53,364

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBGRE

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

AEERBEREVBRFEZXENEERRA

five financial years are as follows: (ECUNNE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-FF —ET-NF ZT-)\F T+ ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET FET FEL FHEL
RESULTS *i&
Revenue Uz 22,888 38,048 47,877 45,230 74,774
Loss before taxation B A 1B (54,711) (25,624) (10,542) (58,615) (44,745)
Taxation TRIA (131) (918) (846) (1,001) (2,143)
Loss before HIBR FEVR AR 2 BT
non-controlling interests &8 (54,842) (26,542) (11,388) (59,616) (46,888)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M A 13,367 132 846 (523) (2,458)
Loss attributable to owners N2 R #EA A EG
of the Company &8 (41,475) (26,410) (10,542) (60,139) (49,346)
Loss per share BiEB
— Basic and diluted — EARREE (BI)
(HK cents) (note) (Hy7%) (4.85) (3.09) (1.23) (7.03) (5.84)
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-FE —T-NF ZE-)N\F ZE—+tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FHET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Total assets EBERE 82,342 115,251 145,884 196,781 227,530
Total liabilities aEesE (50,748) (87,316) (41,056) (84,533) (88,882)
Non-controlling interests R (3,937) 9,856 11,230 12,195 11,773
note: Adjusted for share consolidation effective from 2 May 2019 Kist: BROEHABRE S -—NFRERZHEX

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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